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CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW REPORT
I am pleased to present this review as required under section 192 of the Companies Act, 2017
Overall, the Board is working well given its organizational model and board structure, with Board members having the appropriate range of
skills, knowledge and experience, as well as the degree of diversity, necessary to enable it to effectively govern the business.
As required under the Code of Corporate Governance, an annual evaluation of the Board of Directors of your company has been carried out
to ensure that the Board’s overall performance and effectiveness is measured and benchmarked against expectations in the context of
objectives set for the Company.
For the financial year ended June 30, 2019, overall performance and effectiveness of the Board, its members and its committees has been
satisfactory. The assessment is based on an evaluation of integral components, including vision, mission and values; engagement in
strategic planning; formulation of policies; monitoring the organization’s business activities; monitor financial resource management;
effective fiscal oversight; equitable treatment of all employees and efficiency in carrying out the Board’s business and its committees.
Improvement is an ongoing process leading to action plans.
For the financial year ended June 30, 2019, overall performance and effectiveness of the Board, its members and its committees has been
satisfactory. The assessment is based on an evaluation of integral components, including vision, mission and values; engagement in
strategic planning; formulation of policies; monitoring the organization’s business activities; monitor financial resource management;
effective fiscal oversight; equitable treatment of all employees and efficiency in carrying out the Board’s business and its committees.
Improvement is an ongoing process leading to action plans.
The Board of Directors of your Company received agendas and supporting written material including follow up materials in sufficient time
prior to the board and its committee meetings. The board meets frequently enough to adequately discharge its responsibilities. The nonexecutive and independent directors are equally involved in important decisions. All of the directors are compliant with Director’s Training
Program (DTP) as required by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).
I would like to thank my fellow directors who had carried their responsibilities diligently and look forward to their contribution in future.

Ebrahim Qassim
Chairman
Dated: 03 October 2019
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
The Directors of Shield Corporation Limited are pleased to present the annual report and the audited financial
statements for the financial year ended 30 June 2019. The report intends to provide a quick look at Shield’s
management constant endeavor to maximize shareholders’ value.
Financial summary
Operating Results
Gross Sales
Net Sales
Gross Profit
Gross Profit %
Selling and Distribution Expenses
Administrative Expenses
Finance Costs
Profit Before Tax
Profit After Tax
Earnings per Share

2019
(Rupees)
1,983,112,535
1,778,794,872
556,737,043
31.30%
338,493,789
65,532,759
41,594,682
85,618,758
24,329,724
6.24

2018
(Rupees)
1,824,690,091
1,678,897,969
611,481,320
36.42%
418,214,780
60,753,032
18,714,378
98,125,235
67,903,433
17.41

Increase /
(Decrease)
8.68%
5.95%
(8.95%)
(512 bps)
(19.06%)
7.87%
122.26%
(12.75%)
(64.17%)
(64.17%)

Overview
The year 2018-19 remained a challenging year for the country. Uncertainty prevailed on economic front due to
various reasons like changes in fiscal budget presented twice presented during the year, Stock market registered
annual negative returns and KSE 100 index decreased from 41,911 to 33,774. Inflation rate increased from
4.5% to 14.8% and Pakistani Rupee devalued at Rs. 163 from Rs. 122 against US Dollar. Despite all these
distractions, challenges & difficulties;
1. The Company achieved a gross sales of Rs. 1.98 billion in the financial year, with a growth of 8.68% over
the last year. Responding to the market dynamics, the company has increased the quantum of additional
discounts to trade in order to retain and increase the market share. As a result, the company achieved a net
sales of Rs. 1.77 billion (in the financial year), with a growth of 5.95% over the last year.
2. Gross margin declined by 5.12% mainly due to Rupee devaluation, increase in imported raw material prices,
increased custom duties and change in sales mix of the Company.
3. The Company has spent Rs. 22.57 million and Rs 57.14 million lesser as compared to the last year on
Selling & distribution expenses and Advertisement respectively. The focus was on trade marketing in form
of discounts which are deducted from gross sales.
4. Finance cost of the Company has increased by Rs. 22.88 million due to the increase in utilization of short
term financing facilities and massive increase in Bank rate by 88.46% during the year. Loss on foreign
exchange increased by Rs. 10.91 million as compared to last year.
5. The Company recorded profit before tax of Rs. 85.62 million for the year 2018-19. Income tax increased by
Rs. 31.07 million. Hence, post tax earnings per share decreased to Rs. 6.24 per share from Rs. 17.41 per
share of last year due to factors mentioned above.
6. The Board of Directors propose 12.5% final cash dividend i.e. Rs. 1.25 per share, amounting to Rs. 4.88
million for this financial year to be approved by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. The
undistributed profit for the year of Rs. 19.45 million will add on in the revenue reserves of the Company.
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Our Business Diversity
Shield Corporation Limited was established in 1975 and over the last 44 years Shield has strategically expanded
its product portfolio in both the Baby Care and Oral Care category. These efforts have culminated in Shield
retaining its Leadership status.
Baby Care Range
Shield continues its legacy as a dominant player in the baby care category. Our success is built on our
commitment to high quality, value for money and varied product range in the Baby Care category, which is
why, more mothers place their trust in Shield than in any other Baby Care brand in Pakistan. New product
development was the focus this year and the baby feeding range added a new ‘Glass Feeder’ with a very
successful pilot launch in Karachi, Lahore and Islamabad as well as the New Born Gift Set. With the increase in
demand of colored feeder Shield introduced a new range of Opaque feeders which were highly appreciated by
the customers.
Shield has a comprehensive range of baby care accessories including soothers, teethers, training cups to help
mothers with the various needs of the child. Shield ensures safe products for the baby’s early development
through ensuring food grade material usage in product range and compliance of halal standards.
Shield diapers has been the fastest growing product as a result of marketing activities run throughout the year.
Shield, being the pioneer in Baby Care category, launched for the first time a consumer promotion which was
never done before in the Diaper category. “Shield Lucky to London” was launched nationwide with the
objective to increase the top line of Shield Baby Diaper and penetrate in the market.
Oral Care
Shield remains a key player in the Toothbrush category owing to its high brand awareness and depth of its
product portfolio. Packaging for the entire range has been revamped giving it a new look and feel. The portfolio
has been divided into four categories namely Champs, Essential Care, Family Care and Expert Care thus giving
it a special focus. Moreover, Shield launched Mr. Tooth & Falcon toothbrushes in new hanger packaging to
increase reach and trade visibility in retail channel nationwide.
Shield toothpastes are offered in two different categories which are Adult Range & Kids Range. Adult
toothpastes are available in two distinct flavors; Cinnamon and Peppermint. With its improved formulation, it is
competing against several multi-national and local family-toothpaste brands. Toothpaste category has a
substantial potential for growth. Shield Kids toothpastes are available in three distinct flavors namely
Strawberry, Bubble Gum and Orange. With increasing awareness and growing focus on oral health of children,
we foresee that this segment will continue growing over time.
Management Objectives / Strategies / Threats and Opportunities
Keeping in view growing demand of digital media, like previous year we have aggressive plans for next year to
further engage online customers by different activities. To retain leadership position, focus for this year is
aggressive innovation and new product development.
World Oral Health Day
World Oral Health Day (WOHD) is celebrated every year on 20th March. It is an international day to promote
worldwide awareness on the issues related to oral health. Theme for WOHD 2019 was Say Ahh (Act on Mouth
Health). This was the 10th consecutive year where Shield sponsored the mega event in collaboration with
Dental News.
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Through this activity, Shield conducted Free Dental Checkups in 48 dental colleges in 16 cities. Free samples of
Shield oral care products were also given to the visitors. The event was promoted through Digital advertising
and was well appreciated by the audience
Corporate Social responsibility
The management at Shield firmly believes in doing business with a purpose. Shield always seeks opportunities
to add value to the lives of the people. The Company made donations amounting to Rs. 0.44 million for
education and social welfare projects. Shield is also supporting the education of the children with special needs
as Shield believes in giving back to the society.
Corporate Vision & Mission
Your management is trying its best to make your company, a leading household name in Pakistan while
supporting families in safeguarding their health and make it a symbol of dynamism & an epitome of corporate
responsibility. The company vision is to transform lives with love and happiness.
Human Resource Management
Shield believes in a culture of continuous development and to create an environment which supports
sustainable high performance. The Human Resource Department plays a key role in helping the Company to
deal with a fast-changing competitive environment and the greater demand for quality employees. Shield HR is
engaged not only in identifying and developing the talents of the individuals, but also enhancing the capabilities
of human capital of the Company. Significance of training can never be overstated & at Shield we take it very
seriously. To that end, several in house and outsourced training programs were conducted.
Capital Expenditure
The Company has made an investment in property, plant & equipment including but not limited to the latest
models of machines, moulds and utilities, amounting to Rs. 201 million in order to remain competitive,
technically sound and to reduce reliance on imports. As explained earlier, to hold the leadership position it is
imperative that we keep investing judiciously in latest technology to ensure long term competitiveness and
product innovation. The Company also believes in human and environmental safety through continual
improvement. The Company has been certified in ISO 9001:2015 and 14001:2004, the international standards
for management system of management and environment.
Exports
This year exports declined to Rs. 5.30 million. In terms of exports, there is a lot to achieve. We are actively
working in various markets, i.e. Afghanistan, EU and Africa where we are building our network with
distributors in a bid to increase sales next year. We are confident that going forward we will increase our export
base despite the tough challenges in global market.
Contribution to the National Exchequer
Your Company made a total contribution of Rs. 593 million to the National Exchequer on account of different
government levies, including custom duty, regulatory duty, sales tax and income tax during the year 2018-19.
Corporate Governance
The Company has fully complied with the requirements of the Code of Corporate Governance as contained in
the Listing Regulations of the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. A statement to this effect is annexed with this
report.

24

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Composition of the Board
The board consists of 6 male and 1 female directors with following composition:
Independent directors
Other non-executive directors
Executive directors
Total number of directors

2
3
2
7

Board Meetings
During the year seven (7) meetings of the Board of Directors were held. Attendance of each director is as
follows:
Meetings
Name of Directors
Mr. Ebrahim Qassim
Mr. M. Haroon Qassim
Mr. Vali Muhammad A. Habib
Mr. Pir Muhammad
Mrs. Saadia Butt Naveed
Mr. Syed Imran Chishti
Mr. Muhammad Salman Qassim

Held

Attended

7
7
7
7
7
7
7

6
7
7
7
3
2
7

The Board granted leave of absence to those Directors who could not attend the Board Meetings. No casual
vacancy occurred during the year.
Remuneration Policy of Non-Executive Directors
The fee of the Non-Executive and Independent Directors for attending the Board and Committee meetings of
the Company is determined by the Board from time to time.
Pattern of Shareholding
The pattern of shareholdings as on 30 June 2019 and its disclosure, as required by the Code of Corporate
Governance is annexed with this report.
The Board has reviewed the threshold for disclosure of interest by executives holding of Company’s shares
which include CEO, COO, CFO, Head of Internal Audit and Company Secretary. The Directors, CEO, COO,
Head of Internal Audit, Company Secretary and CFO, their spouses and minor children did not carry out any
trade in the shares of the Company.
Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises of three non-executive directors, of whom one is independent director. An
independent director is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee meets at least four times a
year. The Head of the Internal Audit acts as secretary to the Audit Committee. The brief terms of reference of
the Audit Committee are as follows:
•

Determination of appropriate measures to safeguard the Company’s assets;

•

Review of annual and interim financial statements of the Company, prior to their approval by the Board of
Directors.
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•

Review of preliminary announcements of results prior to external communication and publication;

•

Facilitating the external audit and discussion with external auditors of major observations arising from
interim and final audits and any matter that the auditors may wish to highlight (in the absence of
management, where necessary);

•

Review of management letter issued by external auditors and management’s response thereto;

•

Ensuring coordination between the internal and external auditors of the Company;

•

Review of the scope and extent of internal audit, audit plan, reporting framework and procedures and
ensuring that the internal audit function has adequate resources and is appropriately placed within the
Company;

•

Consideration of major findings of internal investigations of activities characterized by fraud, corruption
and abuse of power and management's response thereto;

•

Ascertaining that the internal control systems including financial and operational controls, accounting
systems for timely and appropriate recording of purchases and sales, receipts and payments, assets and
liabilities and the reporting structure are adequate and effective;

•

Review of the Company’s statement on internal control systems prior to endorsement by the board of
directors and internal audit reports;

•

Instituting special projects, value for money studies or other investigations on any matter specified by the
board of directors, in consultation with the chief executive officer and to consider remittance of any matter
to the external auditors or to any other external body;

•

Determination of compliance with relevant statutory requirements;

•

Monitoring compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 and
identification of significant violations thereof;

•

Review of arrangement for staff and management to report to audit committee in confidence, concerns, if
any, about actual or potential improprieties in financial and other matters and recommend instituting
remedial and mitigating measures;

•

Recommend to the board of directors the appointment of external auditors, their removal, audit fees, the
provision of any service permissible to be rendered to the Company by the external auditors in addition to
audit of its financial statements. The board of directors shall give due consideration to the recommendations
of the audit committee and where it acts otherwise it shall record the reasons thereof.

•

Consideration of any other issue or matter as may be assigned by the board of directors.

Audit Committee Meetings
During the year five (5) meetings of the Audit Committee were held. Attendance of each member is as follows:
Name of Directors

Category

Mr. Pir Muhammad
Mr. Vali Muhammad A. Habib
Mr. Syed Imran Chishti

Chairman
Member
Member

Meetings
Held
5
5
5

Attended
5
5
3

Mr. Pir Muhammad has resigned from Audit Committee on 25 April 2019. Ms. Saadia Naveed has joined as the
member of the Audit Committee and Mr. Imran Chisti became the chairman of the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee granted leave of absence to those members who could not attend the Audit Committee Meetings.
Human Resource & Remuneration Committee
The board has formed a Human Resource and Remuneration Committee. It comprises of three members whom
one is chief executive, one is non-executive director and one is independent director who is also chairman of the
Committee. Human Resource & Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. The terms of reference of
the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee are as follows:
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•
•
•
•
•

Recommending to the board for consideration and approval of a policy framework that determines
remuneration of directors (both executive and non-executive) and members of senior management which
include Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit;
Undertaking annually a formal process of evaluation of performance of the board as a whole and its
committees;
Recommending human resource management policies to the board;
Re commending to the board the selection, evaluation, development, compensation (including retirement
benefits) of Chief Operating Officer, Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head of Internal
Audit;
Where human resource and remuneration consultants are appointed, their credentials shall be known by the
committee and a statement shall be made by them as to whether they have any other connection with the
company.

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee Meetings
During the year, three (3) meetings of the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee were held to discuss
and approve the matters falling under the terms of reference of the Committee. Attendance of each member is as
follows:

Name
Mr. Syed Imran Chishti
Mr. M. Haroon Qassim
Mr. Vali Muhammad A. Habib

Meetings

Category
Chairman
Member
Member

Held

Attended

3
3
3

1
3
3

The Human Resource & Remuneration Committee granted leave of absence to those members who could not
attend the meetings.
Risk Management Committee
The Board of Directors of the Company has established a Risk Management Committee comprising of three
members as recommended by Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017. The
Committee includes one Executive Director, one Non-Executive Director and one Independent Director. The
terms of reference of the Risk Management Committee are as follows:
• Monitoring and review of all material controls (financial, operational, compliance);
• Ensuring that risk mitigation measures are robust and integrity of financial information is ensured; and
• Appropriate extent of disclosure of company’s risk framework and internal control system in Directors
report.
Risk Management Committee Meetings
During the year, one (1) meeting of the Risk Management Committee was held to discuss and approve the
matters falling under the terms of reference of the Committee. Attendance of each member is as follows:
Name
Mr. M. Haroon Qassim
Mr. Pir Muhammad
Mr. Vali Muhammad A. Habib

Category
Chairman
Member
Member

Meetings
Held
1
1
1

Attended
1
1
1
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Risk Management
The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of risks. The Company’s overall risk management program
focuses on minimizing potential adverse effects on the Company’s performance. The overall risk management
of the Company is carried out by the Company’s Senior Management Team and the results are shared with the
Risk Management Committee and the Board of Directors. This entails identifying, evaluating and addressing
strategic, financial, commercial, operational and compliance-related risks of the Company as are mentioned
below:
1. Strategic Risks
Risk
The Company may lose its market share
of Baby Care products due to change in
customer preferences.

Mitigating Strategy
The Company is investing in new technology to produce products
which compliments customer preferences.
IT controls and firewalls are in place to prevent unauthorized
access to confidential / proprietary information. Regular system
updates, IT audits and trainings are conducted to monitor and
minimize the risk of breaches, errors or other irregularities.

IT security risk.

2. Financial Risks
Risk
Fluctuations in foreign currency rates.
Customers will default in payments to the
company.
Insufficient cash available to pay
liabilities -resulting in a liquidity problem.

Mitigating Strategy
The Company is trying to increase its exports to mitigate
currency fluctuation risk.
Most of our sales are either against cash or advance. For credit
sales, credit limits have been assigned to customers.
The Company has a proactive cash management system.
Committed credit lines from banks are also available to bridge a
liquidity gap, if any.

3. Commercial Risks
Risk
Increasing production and distribution
costs result in decrease in profits of the
Company.

Raw material cost component is a major
part of the overall cost of production of
the Company. Suppliers may increase the
cost of products supplied in view of
international
economic
conditions
including rising costs of international fuel
prices.
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Mitigating Strategy
Increase in levies, duties, regulatory duties and other costs are
beyond the control of the Company. The Company, however, is
committed to improve operational efficiencies and implement
effective cost controls to mitigate this risk to the maximum
possible extent. The Company considers increase in price as a last
option.
The Company examines raw material prices offered by various
suppliers on a regular basis to compare and control its purchasing
cost. Moreover, it has strategic relationships with key
international raw material suppliers which benefit the company in
price negotiation and prompt material delivery.
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4. Operational risk
Risk
Increase in employee turnover at critical
positions.

Risk of major accidents impacting
employees, records and property.
The Company may not be able to operate
at an optimal capacity due to the
unavailability of electricity.
Volatile law and order situation affecting
the Country’s economy.

Mitigating Strategy
The Company has a culture of employee training and
development, continuously promoting and rotating employees
within the departments. Formal work procedures and work
instructions are also in place, which provide guidance on any
process undertaken by a new employee.
Implementation of standardized operating procedures, employee
trainings and operational discipline.
The Company has standby generators to be used in case of
electricity failure.
This risk cannot be mitigated through internal strategies.

5. Compliance risk
Risk
Modifications in the legal framework by
regulatory bodies.

Mitigating Strategy
Rigorous checks on latest updates in regulatory framework are
carried out to prevent any breach of law. Trainings are conducted
to keep employees abreast of all latest developments in laws and
regulations.

Subsequent Events
There were no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the company which have
occurred between the end of the financial year of the company to which the financial statement relates and the
date of the report.
External Auditors
M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. Chartered Accountants, the auditors of the Company has retired. The Board of
Directors based on recommendation of the Audit Committee considered and approved appointment of M/s.
BDO Ebrahim & Co. Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the Company for the year ending 30 June 2020 on
such terms and conditions and remuneration as to be decided.
Internal Auditors
The Internal Audit Function is outsourced to M/s. A.F. Fergusons & Co., Chartered Accountants and reports to
Head of Internal Audit and the Boards’ Audit Committee. It reviews the system of internal controls and conduct
the internal audit process. The Board of Directors on recommendation of the Audit Committee has decided to
appoint M/s. Deloitte Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants as internal auditors for the year 2019-20.
Impact of Company Business on Environment
The Company is committed to reducing its impact on the environment through its compliance & surveillance of
EMS ISO 14001. Each department has developed an environmental evaluation chart which covers following
environmental aspects.
1. Pollution:
•
•

We keep checks on air emission, liquid effluents, solid waste, noise and land decay. The annual audits are
conducted from renowned labs for validation.
Preventing pollution and reducing consumption of resources through waste management strategies that
promote waste minimization re-use, recovery and recycling, as appropriate.

1)
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•

All of our materials are either recycled at our factory or sold to outside vendors for recycling purpose. We
don’t dispose of any material.

2. Natural Resources.
•

Use of natural resources is monitored like electricity, natural gas, oil, diesel and water. We continue to
invest in technologies that keep on replacing our existing machines with more energy efficient versions.

3. Emergency Condition:
•

Emergency readiness in practiced through monthly fire drills. Train all of our staff on our environmental
program and empower them to contribute and participate.

Hence, our commitment to the environment extends to our customers, our staff, and the community in which we
operate.
Related Party Transactions
In order to comply with the requirements of listing regulations, the company presented related party transactions
before the audit committee and Board for their review and approval. These transactions were approved by the
Audit Committee and Board of Directors in their respective meetings. The details of related party transactions
have been provided in the notes annexed to the financial statement.
Statement on Corporate and Financial Reporting Framework
Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
a.

b.
c.
d.
e.
f.
g.

h.
i.
j.
k.
l.
m.

The Board regularly reviews the company’s strategic direction. Annual plans and performance targets for
business are set by the Chief Executive and are reviewed by the Board in the light of Company’s overall
objectives. The Board is committed to maintain the high standards of good corporate governance. The
Company has been in compliance with the provisions set out by the Securities & Exchange Commission of
Pakistan and amended listing rules of Pakistan Stock Exchange.
There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the
listing regulations.
The financial statements, prepared by the management of the company, fairly present its state of affairs, the
results of its operations, comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity.
Proper books of account of the Company are maintained.
Appropriate accounting policies have consistently been applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.
The financials are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in
Pakistan and any deviation has been adequately disclosed and explained.
The Company maintains a sound internal control system, which gives reasonable assurance against any
material misstatement or loss. The internal control system is regularly reviewed. This has been formalized
by the Board’s Audit Committee and is updated as and when needed.
There are no significant doubts upon the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
There is no default in payment of any debt during the year 2017-18.
Outstanding duties, statutory charges and taxes, if any, have been duly disclosed in the financial statements.
The value of investment of Provident Fund based on its audited accounts amounted to Rs. 35.47 million.
The key operating and financial data for the last six years in summarized form is annexed.
All directors of the company are compliant with the requirement of the Code of Corporate Governance
related to Directors Training Program.

•

30

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Future Outlook
We at Shield believe in constant growth and success. Therefore, we are actively on a quest to identify new
product categories. These new categories will be supplementary to the existing categories and will help in
leveraging Shield’s brand power.
There seems no respite from economic vows in short term. There will be more stringent policies coming in due
to IMF extended fund arrangement. The tight budgetary measures have negative impacts on sales. The inflation,
spike in bank rates, anticipated increase in regulatory/custom duty and resultant increase in commodity prices,
abolishment of tax credits on investments in new plant and machinery are anticipated to build pressure on
margins of the Company. On the other hand, there is tense situation at LOC due to adverse relations of Indo-Pak
due to Indian unilateral actions of changing the status of occupied Kashmir. The Company plans to manage it
with competitive pricing strategy, building on our distribution led competitive edge and investment in new
technology to enhance the quality and consumer base.
Your management realizes that our baby care category is going strong and we must capitalize and sustain this
effort so we continue to lead in this area. Export market is currently being explored and developed, to create a
new platform where the team can meet demands of the challenging market.
Acknowledgement
We would like to place on record appreciations and thanks to:
• Our colleagues on the board for their valuable guidance and support.
• Our valued customers and consumers who have shown trust in our products and continued to provide
sustained support in ensuring the progress of the Company.
• Our employees for their tireless efforts, commitment and dedication.
• Our esteemed suppliers, bankers and all stakeholders who are helping and contributing towards the
continued growth of our Company.

On behalf of Board of Directors

M. Haroon Qassim
Chief Executive

Vali Muhammad A. Habib
Director

Karachi: 03 October 2019

31

KEY FINANCIAL DATA
SIX YEARS AT A GLANCE
2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

----------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------------------Balance Sheet
Paid up capital

39,000,000

39,000,000

39,000,000

39,000,000

39,000,000

39,000,000

Reserves & un-appropriated profit

368,221,403

362,213,796

313,810,363

287,151,550

262,771,340

221,898,887

Shareholders equity

407,221,403

401,213,796

352,810,363

326,151,550

301,771,340

260,898,887

Non-current liabilities

143,837,534

87,783,652

158,763,249

81,256,965

133,645,829

173,414,761

Current liabilities
Total equity and liabilities

Non-current assets
Current assets

567,890,669

361,847,395

280,605,898

304,303,856

248,174,014

298,946,554

1,118,949,606

850,844,843

792,179,510

711,712,371

683,591,183

733,260,202

616,677,147

445,980,397

448,958,966

362,438,408

359,184,840

368,867,966

523,972,459

404,864,446

343,220,544

349,273,963

324,406,343

364,392,236

1,140,649,606

850,844,843

792,179,510

711,712,371

683,591,183

733,260,202

1,779

1,679

1,662

1,548

1,249

1,175

Sales - net

1,778,794,872

1,678,897,969

1,662,086,046

1,548,321,733

1,248,961,378

1,174,856,539

Cost of sales

1,222,057,829

1,067,416,649

1,088,656,983

1,041,712,545

870,750,560

809,115,849

Gross profit

556,737,043

611,481,320

573,429,063

506,609,188

378,210,818

365,740,690

Selling and distribution expenses

338,493,789

418,214,780

427,702,275

388,299,071

257,653,951

273,859,529

65,532,759

60,753,032

65,149,589

39,901,493

37,485,364

28,490,558

Total assets

Profit and Loss Account

Administrative and general expenses
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Other operating expenses

1,544,424

284,573

26,001,455

17,302,986

6,455,334

-

5,081,446

5,244,569

3,187,096

2,048,824

1,913,664

22,972,424

2,119,332

1,751,491

1,742,636

127,213,440

116,839,613

97,094,289

75,446,510

79,578,425

61,946,143

Finance costs

41,594,682

18,714,378

11,167,225

7,754,789

15,747,185

23,968,150

Profit before taxation

85,618,758

98,125,235

85,927,064

67,691,721

63,831,240

37,977,993

Taxation

61,289,034

30,221,802

37,314,087

20,848,660

16,181,426

14,815,428

Profit for the year

24,329,724

67,903,433

48,612,977

46,843,061

47,649,814

23,162,565

Other operating income
Operating profit before finance costs
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STATEMENT OF VALUE ADDED
The statement below shows the amount of the revenue generated by the Company during the year and the way this revenue
has been distributed:
2019
Rupees

%

2018
Rupees

%

Revenue Generated
Total revenue

2,120,457,132

100.00

1,994,317,572

100.00

Revenue Distributed
Material and services
Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative and other costs
Finance costs

1,072,804,319
214,117,570
44,252,207
41,594,682

50.59
10.10
2.09
1.96

945,798,400
266,252,491
30,254,942
18,714,378

47.42
13.35
1.52
0.94

Income tax
Worker's welfare fund
Sales tax

61,289,034
1,657,618
339,613,436

2.89
0.08
16.01

30,221,802
1,447,505
313,505,939

1.52
0.07
15.72

To Government

402,560,088

18.98

345,175,246

17.31

Salaries, wages and other benefits

320,303,574

15.11

319,718,682

16.03

To Employees

320,303,574

15.11

319,718,682

16.03

Donations

440,000

0.02

500,000

0.03

To Society

440,000

0.02

500,000

0.03

Cash dividend *

4,875,000

0.23

13,650,000

0.68

To Shareholders

4,875,000

0.23

13,650,000

0.68

19,509,692

0.92

54,253,433

2.72

2,120,457,132

100.00

1,994,317,572

100.00

Retained in the Business

* Represents final cash dividend @ Rs. 1.25 per share proposed by the Board of Directors subsequent to the year end.
10.10

50.59

2.09

Material and services

1.96

Selling and distribu�on expenses
Administra�ve and other costs
Finance costs
To Government
To Employees
To Society

18.98
0.92
0.23

0.02

To Shareholders
Retained in the Business

15.11
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VERTICAL ANALYSIS
2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

Balance Sheet Analysis (%)
Non-current assets

54.06

52.42

56.67

50.92

52.54

50.31

Current assets

45.94

47.58

43.33

49.08

47.46

49.69

Total assets

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

Share capital and reserves

36.39

47.15

44.54

45.83

44.15

35.58

Non-current liabilities

12.85

10.32

20.04

11.42

19.55

23.65

Current liabilities

50.75

42.53

35.42

42.75

36.30

40.77

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

Cost of sales

68.70

63.58

65.50

67.28

69.72

68.87

Gross profit

31.30

36.42

34.50

32.72

30.28

31.13

Selling and distribution expenses

19.03

24.91

25.73

25.08

20.63

23.31

Administrative and general expenses

3.68

3.62

3.92

2.58

3.00

2.43

Impairment loss on trade receivables

0.09

0.02

-

-

-

-

Other operating expenses

1.46

1.03

0.39

0.33

0.42

0.27

Other operating income

0.12

0.11

1.38

0.14

0.14

0.15

Operating profit

7.15

6.96

5.84

4.87

6.37

5.27

Finance costs

2.34

1.11

0.67

0.50

1.26

2.04

Profit before taxation

4.81

5.84

5.17

4.37

5.11

3.23

Taxation

3.45

1.80

2.25

1.35

1.30

1.26

Profit after taxation

1.37

4.04

2.92

3.03

3.82

1.97

Total equity and liabilities

Profit and Loss Account Analysis (%)
Net sales
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HORIZONTAL ANALYSIS
Change from preceeding year
2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

Balance Sheet Analysis (%)
Non-current assets

38.27

(0.66)

Current assets

29.42

Total assets

34.06

Share capital and reserves

23.87

0.91

(2.63)

4.39

17.96

(1.73)

7.67

(10.97)

6.76

7.41

11.31

4.11

(6.77)

5.55

1.50

13.72

8.17

8.08

15.67

6.18

Non-current liabilities

63.85

(44.71)

95.38

(39.20)

(22.93)

2.36

Current liabilities

56.94

28.95

(7.79)

22.62

(16.98)

6.92

Total equity and liabilities

31.51

7.41

11.31

4.11

(6.77)

5.55

5.95

1.01

7.35

23.97

6.31

(3.62)

Cost of sales

14.49

(1.95)

4.51

19.63

7.62

(7.05)

Gross profit

(8.95)

6.64

13.19

33.95

3.41

4.95

(19.06)

(2.22)

10.15

50.71

(5.92)

5.41

Administrative and general expenses

7.87

(6.75)

63.28

6.45

31.57

22.68

Impairment loss on trade receivables

442.72

100.00

-

-

-

-

50.27

168.04

27.04

(3.11)

64.56

(1.21)

Other operating income

7.06

(91.67)

983.95

21.00

0.51

(27.66)

Operating profit

8.88

20.34

28.69

(5.19)

28.46

(4.17)

Finance costs

122.26

67.58

44.00

(50.75)

(34.30)

23.47

Profit before taxation

(12.75)

14.20

26.94

6.05

68.07

(16.03)

Taxation

102.80

(19.01)

78.98

28.84

9.22

157.57

Profit after taxation

(64.17)

39.68

3.78

(1.69)

105.72

(41.32)

Profit and Loss Account Analysis (%)
Net sales

Selling and distribution expenses

Other operating expenses
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OPERATING & FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
Year

2019

Profitability Ratios
Gross profit (%)
Net profit (%)
Profit before tax (%)
EBITDA margin to sales (%)
Operating leverage ratio (Times)
Return on capital employed (%)

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

1,779
31.30
1.37
4.81
9.25
1.49
24.32

1,679
36.42
4.04
5.84
8.89
20.11
25.61

34.50
2.92
5.17
8.48
3.91
22.59

1,548
32.72
3.03
4.37
7.31
(0.22)
23.02

1,249
30.28
3.82
5.11
9.44
4.51
25.02

1,175
31.13
1.97
3.23
8.57
1.15
17.42

0.92
0.19
0.27
(0.04)

1.12
0.38
0.35
0.00

1.22
0.20
0.39
0.03

1.15
0.20
0.34
0.03

1.31
0.28
0.30
0.12

1.22
0.21
0.34
0.09

1.56
2.88
7.40
96.10
19.08
84.42
49.30
3.80
19.13

1.97
3.76
7.08
89.09
27.02
69.15
51.53
4.10
13.51

2.10
3.70
2.93
91.33
36.43
57.83
124.61
4.00
10.02

2.18
4.27
1.74
91.73
39.81
53.66
210.40
3.99
9.19

1.83
3.48
0.85
111.72
60.22
52.35
443.80
3.27
6.06

1.60
3.19
4.53
123.13
43.62
84.04
83.12
2.96
8.37

6.24
30.97
1.76
0.65
0.20
4.99
12.50
109.98
193.25

17.41
14.36
2.43
1.40
0.20
4.97
35.00
102.88
250.00

12.46
50.94
7.02
0.79
0.40
2.49
50.00
90.46
635.00

12.01
49.87
7.16
0.83
0.42
2.40
50.00
83.63
599.00

12.22
20.09
3.17
2.04
0.41
2.44
50.00
77.38
245.50

5.94
51.07
4.53
0.49
0.25
3.96
15.00
66.90
303.33

35.32
1.32
3.06
5.97

21.88
0.74
6.24
16.92

45.00
0.70
8.69
13.78

24.91
0.50
9.73
14.36

44.29
0.38
5.05
15.79

66.47
0.74
2.58
8.88

Liquidity Ratios
Current ratio
Acid-test ratio
Cash to current liabilities
Cash flow from operations to sales

Activity / Turnover Ratios
Asset turnover ratio
Fixed assets turnover ratio
Receivables turnover (Days)
Inventory turnover (Days)
Creditors turnover (Days)
Operating cycle (Days)
Receivables turnover (Times)
Inventory turnover (Times)
Creditors turnover (Times)

Investment/Market Ratios
Earning per share (Rs.)
Price earnings ratio
Price to book ratio
Dividend yield ratio
Dividend payout ratio
Dividend cover ratio
Dividend per share (%)
Book value per share (Rs.)
Market value per share - year end - (Rs.)

Capital Structure Ratios
Debt/Equity ratio (%)
Financial leverage ratio
Interest cover ratio
Return on shareholders' equity (%)
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
Held by the shareholders as on 30 June 2019
Shareholding

Number of Shareholders
211
103
23
29
7
3
3
2

Total Shares Held

From

To

1
101
501
1,001
5,001
300,001
410,001
550,001

100
500
1,000
5,000
85,000
350,000
470,000
760,000

7,083
30,514
17,384
58,277
207,780
972,648
1,291,649
1,314,665

381

3,900,000

Categories of Shareholders

No of Shares Held

Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their Spouses

74.46

Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties

-

-

Executives

-

-

Public Sector Companies and Corporations

-

-

Banks, development finance institutions, non-banking finance
companies

-

-

Insurance companies, takaful, modarabas and pension funds

-

-

Mutual Funds

-

-

Shareholders holding 10% & more
General Public
a. Local
b. Foreign
Others
NOTE: Some of the shareholders are reflected in more than one category
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2,606,314

66.83

993,825
-

25.48
-

2,311

0.06

DETAILS OF PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
No. of shares
held

Shareholder's Category
I)

DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND THEIR SPOUSES
Mr. Ebrahim Qassim
Mr. M. Haroon Qassim
Mr. Vali Muhammad A. Habib
Mr. Pir Muhammad
Mrs. Saadia Butt Naveed
Mr. Syed Imran Chishti
Mr. Muhammad Salman Qassim
Mrs. Kulsum Bano
Mrs. Zohra Bano
Mrs. Wazira Parveen

556,050
462,509
55,250
500
650
500
417,430
758,615
346,840
305,520
2,903,864

%

14.26
11.86
1.42
0.01
0.02
0.01
10.70
19.45
8.89
7.83
74.46

II)

ASSOCIATED COMPANIES, UNDERTAKINGS AND RELATED PARTIES

-

-

III)

EXECUTIVES

-

-

IV)

PUBLIC SECTOR COMPANIES AND CORPORATIONS

-

-

V)

BANKS, DEVELOPMENT FINANCE INSTITUTIONS, NON-BANKING
FINANCE COMPANIES

-

-

VI)

INSURANCE COMPANIES, TAKAFUL, MODARABAS AND PENSION FUNDS

-

-

VII)

MUTUAL FUNDS

-

-

VIII)

SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING 5% OR MORE
Mr. Ebrahim Qassim
Mr. M. Haroon Qassim
Mr. Muhammad Salman Qassim
Mr. Muhammad Jamil Qassim
Mrs. Kulsum Bano
Mrs. Zohra Bano
Mrs. Wazira Parveen
Mrs. Saba Qassim

IX)

OTHERS AND GENERAL PUBLIC

556,050
462,509
417,430
411,710
758,615
346,840
305,520
320,288
3,578,962

14.26
11.86
10.70
10.56
19.45
8.89
7.83
8.21
91.77

996,136

25.54

Financial Calender
The Company follows the period of July 01 to June 30 as the financial year
For the financial year 2019-20, financial results will be announced as per the following tentative schedule.
Un-Audited Financial Results for First Quarter
Reviewed Half yearly Financial Results
Un-Audited Financial Results for Third Quarter
Audited Annual Results for the year ended 30 June 2020

Last week of October, 2019
Third week of February, 2020
Third week of April, 2020
Second week of September, 2020
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH LISTED COMPANIES (CODE
OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2017
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
The Company has complied with the requirements of Code of Corporate Governance Regulations, 2017 (the Regulations) in the
following manner:
1.

The total number of directors are seven as per the following:
a) Male:
6
b) Female: 1

2.

The composition of Board is as follows:
a) Independent Directors:
Mr. Pir Muhammad
Mr. Syed Imran Chishti
b) Other Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Ebrahim Qassim
Mr. Vali Muhammad A. Habib
Mrs. Saadia Butt Naveed
c)

Executive Directors
Mr. M. Haroon Qassim
Mr. Muhammad Salman Qassim

3.

The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, including this
Company (excluding the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable).

4.

The Company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it
throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and procedures.

5.

The Board has developed a vision / mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Company. A
complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been
maintained.

6.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by the Board /
shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) and these Regulations.

7.

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the Board for
this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of the Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency,
recording and circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

8.

The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and
these Regulations.

9.

All directors of the Company are compliant with the requirement of the Regulation related to Directors’ Training Program.
The Board ensures arrangement of orientation course for its directors to apprise them of their duties and responsibilities at
the beginning of their term. No training session for directors was held during the year.

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit,
including their remunerations and terms and conditions of employment and complied with relevant requirements of the
Regulations. During the year, the Company Secretary has resigned for which the Board has approved the appointment of
new Company Secretary including his remunerations and terms and conditions of employment. During the year, the Head of
Internal Audit has resigned for which the Board has approved the appointment of new Head of Internal Audit including his
remunerations and terms and conditions of employment.
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11.

CFO and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the Board.

12.

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:
Audit Committee:
Mr. Syed Imran Chishti – Chairman
Mr. Vali Muhammad A. Habib
Mrs. Saadia Butt Naveed
HR and Remuneration Committee:
Mr. Syed Imran Chishti – Chairman
Mr. M. Haroon Qassim
Mr. Vali Muhammad A. Habib
Risk Management Committee:
Mr. M. Haroon Qassim – Chairman
Mr. Vali Muhammad A. Habib
Mr. Pir Muhammad

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committee for
compliance.
14. During the financial year ended 30 June 2019, the frequency of meetings of the committees were as per following:
Audit Committee
HR and Remuneration Committee
Risk Management Committee

Five meetings
Three meetings
One meeting

15.

The Board has outsourced the internal audit function to M/s. A.F. Fergusons & Co., Chartered Accountants who are
considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose. For the year 2019-20, the internal audit function has been
outsourced to M/s. Deloitte Yousuf Adil Chartered Accountants who are considered suitably qualified and experienced for
the purpose.

16.

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality
control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners
of the firm, their spouses and minor children do not hold shares of the company and that the firm and all its partners are in
compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

17.

The Company continued to presented the details of all related party transactions as disclosed in the financial statements
before the Board Audit Committee and upon their recommendation to the Board for review and approval. The Company
also has in place a process to identify the related parties and related transactions entered into with them. However, full
compliance of the requirements as laid down in Section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017 is dependent on clarification from
SECP with respect to definition of related parties.

18.

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in
accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they
have observed IFAC guidelines in this regard.

19.

We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with.

___________________
M. Haroon Qassim
Chief Executive Officer

______________________
Vali Muhammad A. Habib
Director

Karachi: 03 October 2019
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2019
Note
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Long term deposits
Investment in equity accounted investee
Long term loans and advances

5
6

2018
(Rupees)

607,865,757
4,811,390
4,000,000
616,677,147

441,122,786
33,334
4,811,390
12,887
445,980,397

23,141,602
392,317,143
22,974,273
2,796,152
14,482,717
66,716,590
1,543,982
523,972,459

16,130,493
251,156,278
49,187,628
10,573,209
43,358,383
33,201,277
1,257,178
404,864,446

1,140,649,606

850,844,843

150,000,000

150,000,000

16
17
18

39,000,000
21,700,000
10,000,000
358,221,403
428,921,403

39,000,000
10,000,000
352,213,796
401,213,796

19
20

49,575,079
94,262,455
143,837,534

32,783,652
55,000,000
87,783,652

21
22
20
23

81,356,129
13,112,552
91,497,270
380,917,201
321,227
686,290
567,890,669

113,943,844
3,304,180
22,000,000
221,708,152
204,944
686,275
361,847,395

711,728,203
-

449,631,047
-

1,140,649,606

850,844,843

7
8

Current assets
Stores and spares
Stock-in-trade
Trade receivables
Loans and advances
Trade deposits, prepayments and other receivables
Taxation - net
Cash and bank balances

2019
(Rupees)

9
10
11
12
13
14
15

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share capital and reserves
Authorised Capital
15,000,000 (2018: 15,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each
Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital
3,900,000 ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each
Loan from a director
Capital reserve
Revenue reserves
Total Shareholder's equity
Non-current liabilities
Deferred taxation
Long term financing - secured
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Accrued profit
Current portion of long term financing
Short term borrowings - secured
Unpaid dividend
Unclaimed dividend
Total liabilities
Contingencies and Commitments

24

Total equity and liabilities
The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

M. Haroon Qassim
Chief Executive

Vali Muhammad A. Habib
Director

M. Zaid Kaliya
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
Note
Sales - net
Cost of sales

25
26

Gross profit
Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative and general expenses
Impairment loss on trade receivables
Other operating expenses

27
28
11
29

Other operating income

30

Operating profit before finance costs
Finance costs

2019
(Rupees)
1,778,794,872
(1,222,057,829)

611,481,320

(338,493,789)
(65,532,759)
(1,544,424)
(26,001,455)

(418,214,780)
(60,753,032)
(284,573)
(17,302,986)

(431,572,427)

(496,555,371)

125,164,616
2,048,824

114,925,949
1,913,664

127,213,440

116,839,613

(41,594,682)

(18,714,378)

85,618,758

98,125,235

(61,289,034)

(30,221,802)

24,329,724

67,903,433

Profit before taxation
32

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive income

-

Total comprehensive income for the year
Earnings per share - basic and diluted

1,678,897,969
(1,067,416,649)

556,737,043

31

Taxation

2018
(Rupees)

33

-

24,329,724

67,903,433

6.24

17.41

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

M. Haroon Qassim
Chief Executive
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Vali Muhammad A. Habib
Director
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M. Zaid Kaliya
Chief Financial Officer

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
Note

2019
(Rupees)

2018
(Rupees)

Cash flows from operating activities
Cash flow from operations
Payment for gratuity
Payment for long term deposits
Loan to employees -net
Finance costs paid
Income tax paid

34
21

Net cash (used in) / from operating activities

57,414,071
(10,669,400)
(26,217)
(31,786,310)
(78,012,920)

117,782,875
(53,143,637)
(288,890)
83,758
(17,146,425)
(40,445,962)

(63,080,776)

6,841,719

(209,400,060)
(4,000,000)
415,329
(212,984,731)

(41,368,231)
3,253,934
(38,114,297)

108,759,725
21,700,000
60,866,536
(13,533,702)

(23,640,246)
42,347,543
(19,339,738)

Cash flows from investing activities
Fixed capital expenditure including capital work in progress
Investment in equity accounted investee
Sales proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment
Net cash (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Long term financing diminishing musharakah - net
Loan proceeds from a director
Short term murabaha - net
Dividend paid

7
5.4

34.1

(632,441)

Net cash from / (used in) financing activities

177,792,559

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

(98,272,948)

(31,905,019)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Effect of movements in exchange rates on cash held

(87,404,691)
217,239

(55,152,253)
(347,419)

(185,460,400)

(87,404,691)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

35

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.

M. Haroon Qassim
Chief Executive

Vali Muhammad A. Habib
Director

M. Zaid Kaliya
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note

Capital reserve

Issued,
subscribed and
paid-up capital

Loan from a
director

Share premium

16

17

18

Revenue reserves
Unappropriated
profit

General

Total

------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees) -----------------------------------------------------Balance as at 30 June 2017

39,000,000

-

10,000,000

55,000,000

248,810,363

352,810,363

67,903,433

67,903,433

Total comprehensive income for the
year ended 30 June 2018
Profit for the year

-

-

-

-

Other comprehensive income for the year

-

-

-

-

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

-

-

67,903,433

67,903,433

-

-

-

-

(19,500,000)

(19,500,000)

-

-

Transactions with owners
Dividend for the year 30 June 2017 - Final
- @ Rs. 5 per share
Balance as at 30 June 2018

39,000,000

-

10,000,000

55,000,000

297,213,796

401,213,796

Adjustment on initial application of
IFRS 9, net of tax

-

Adjusted balance as at 01 July 2018

-

39,000,000

-

10,000,000

55,000,000

(4,672,117)

(4,672,117)

292,541,679

396,541,679

24,329,724

24,329,724

Total comprehensive income for the
year ended 30 June 2019
Profit for the year

-

-

-

-

Other comprehensive income for the year

-

-

-

-

Total comprehensive income for the year

-

-

-

-

Loan received during the year

-

-

-

-

-

21,700,000

-

-

24,329,724
-

24,329,724
21,700,000

Transactions with owners
Dividend for the year 30 June 2018 - Final
- @ Rs. 3.5 per share
Balance as at 30 June 2019

39,000,000

21,700,000

10,000,000

55,000,000

(13,650,000)
303,221,403

(13,650,000)
428,921,403

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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M. Zaid Kaliya

Chief Executive

Director

Chief Financial Officer
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
1

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS
Shield Corporation Limited (the Company) was incorporated on 10 January 1975 as a public limited company in Pakistan under the
Companies Act, 1913 (now Companies Act, 2017) and is quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange. The registered office of the Company is
situated at 37-G, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S., Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. Subsequent to the year end registered office of the Company was changed to
office No. 1007, 10th Floor, Business Avenue, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S., Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.
Manufacturing facility of the Company is located at Landhi Industrial Area, Karachi. The Company started its commercial production on 26
November 1975 and is mainly engaged in the manufacturing, trading and sales of oral care and baby care products.

2

BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1

Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of:
-

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as
notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

-

Islamic Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017; and

-

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from IFRS Standards or IFAS, the provisions of and
directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.
2.2

Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain investments which are carried at fair
value.

2.3

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees which is also the Company's functional and presentation currency.

2.4

Use of estimates and judgements
In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the
Company's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these
estimates. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to estimates are recognized prospectively.
Information about judgements made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on the amount recognized in the
financial statements to the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities and assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant
risk resulting in a material adjustment in the subsequent year are set forth below:
-

2.5

Property, plant and equipment (refer note 4.1)
Stores and spares and stock-in-trade (refer note 4.3 and 4.4)
Investments in associate (refer note 4.8)
Taxation (refer note 4.10)
Impairment (refer note 4.7.1.7)
Provisions (refer note 4.13)

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective
The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments
and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2019:
-

IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019) clarifies the
accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the
uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the measurement of current and deferred tax. The application of interpretation is not
likely to have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.

55

56

-

IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ (effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). IFRS 16 replaces existing leasing guidance,
including IAS 17 ‘Leases’, IFRIC 4 ‘Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease’, SIC-15 ‘Operating Leases- Incentives’
and SIC-27 ‘Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease’. IFRS 16 introduces a single, on-balance
sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognizes a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset
and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and
leases of low-value items. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classify leases as finance
or operating leases. Based on initial assessment the management considers that there will be no potential impact on the adoption of
this standard.

-

Amendment to IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ – Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019). For a debt instrument to be eligible for measurement at amortised cost or FVOCI, IFRS 9 requires
its contractual cash flows to meet the SPPI criterion – i.e. the cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest’. Some
prepayment options could result in the party that triggers the early termination receiving compensation from the other party (negative
compensation). The amendment allows that financial assets containing prepayment features with negative compensation can be
measured at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) if they meet the other relevant requirements
of IFRS 9. The application of amendment is not likely to have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.

-

Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ - Long Term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures
(effective for annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The amendment will affect companies that finance such entities with
preference shares or with loans for which repayment is not expected in the foreseeable future (referred to as long-term interests or
‘LTI’). The amendment and accompanying example state that LTI are in the scope of both IFRS 9 and IAS 28 and explain the annual
sequence in which both standards are to be applied. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Company’s financial
statements.

-

Amendments to IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits’- Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019). The amendments clarify that on amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a company now
uses updated actuarial assumptions to determine its current service cost and net interest for the period; and the effect of the asset
ceiling is disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in other
comprehensive income. The application of amendments is not likely to have an impact on the Company’s financial statements.

-

Amendment to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ – Definition of a Business (effective for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The IASB has issued amendments
aiming to resolve the difficulties that arise when an entity determines whether it has acquired a business or a group of assets. The
amendments clarify that to be considered a business, an acquired set of activities and assets must include, at a minimum, an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments include an election to
use a concentration test. The standard is effective for transactions in the future and therefore would not have an impact on past
financial statements.

-

Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020). The amendments are intended to make the definition of
material in IAS 1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in IFRS Standards. In
addition, the IASB has also issued guidance on how to make materiality judgments when preparing their general purpose financial
statements in accordance with IFRS Standards.

-

On 29 March 2018, the International Accounting Standards Board (the IASB) has issued a revised Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting which is applicable immediately contains changes that will set a new direction for IFRS in the future. The
Conceptual Framework primarily serves as a tool for the IASB to develop standards and to assist the IFRS Interpretations Committee
in interpreting them. It does not override the requirements of individual IFRSs and any inconsistencies with the revised Framework
will be subject to the usual due process – this that the overall impact on standard setting may take some time to crystallise. The
Company may use the Framework as a reference for selecting their accounting policies in the absence of specific IFRS requirements.
In these cases, the Company should review those policies and apply the new guidance retrospectively as of 1 January 2020, unless
the new guidance contains specific scope outs.

-

Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle - the improvements address amendments to following approved
accounting standards:
-

IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrangement - the amendment aims to clarify the accounting treatment when
a entity increases its interest in a joint operation that meets the definition of a business. A entity remeasures its previously
held interest in a joint operation when it obtains control of the business. A entity does not remeasure its previously held
interest in a joint operation when it obtains joint control of the business.

-

IAS 12 Income Taxes - the amendment clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on
financial instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transaction that generates the distributable
profits.
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-

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs - the amendment clarifies that a entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally
made to develop an asset when the asset is ready for its intended use or sale.

The above amendments are effective from annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2019 and are not likely to have an impact on
the Company’s financial statements.
3

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements have been consistently applied to all periods
presented except for the change in accounting policies as stated below. A number of other new standards are effective from 1 July 2018 but
they do not have a material effect on the Company's financial statements.
The Company has adopted IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’ and IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ from 01 July 2018 which
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 July 2018 and for reporting period / year ending on or after 30 June 2019
respectively. The Company has also adopted consequential amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS 7 as a result of adoption of IFRS 9.
The key changes to the Company's accounting policies resulting from adoption of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 are summarized below:

3.1

IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
On 28 May 2014, the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") issued International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRS") 15
"Revenue From Contracts with Customers" which provides a unified five-step model for determining the timing, measurement and
recognition of revenue. The focus of the new standard is to recognize revenue as performance obligations are made rather than based on the
transfer of risk and rewards. IFRS 15 includes a comprehensive set of disclosure requirements including qualitative and quantitative
information about contracts with customers to understand the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue. The standard supersedes
IAS 18 "Revenue", IAS 11 "Construction Contracts" and the number of revenue related interpretations.
The Company is engaged in manufacturing, trading and sales of oral care and baby care products to customers which generally include
single performance obligation. Management has concluded that revenue from sale of goods be recognised at the point in time when control
of the asset is transferred to the customer, which is when the goods are dispatched to the customer. Invoices are generated and revenue is
recognised at that point in time, as the risks of loss have been transferred to the customers. The above is generally consistent with the
timing and amounts of revenue the Company recognised in accordance with the previous standard, IAS 18. Accordingly, there is no impact
on comparative information.

3.2

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments'
IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognising and measuring financial assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or sell nonfinancial items. This standard replaces IAS 39 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement'. The new standard brings fundamental
changes to the accounting for financial assets and to certain aspects of the accounting for financial liabilities.
As a result of the adoption of IFRS 9, the Company has adopted consequential amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements',
which require impairment of financial assets to be presented in a separate line item in the statement of profit or loss. Previously, the
Company's approach was to include the impairment of trade receivables in other operating expenses. Consequently, the Company
reclassified impairment losses amounting to Rs. 0.285 million, recognised under IAS 39, from 'other operating expenses' to 'impairment loss
on trade receivables' in the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2018. Additionally, the Company has adopted
consequential amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' that are applied to disclosures for the year ended 30 June 2019 but
have not been generally applied to comparative information.
The key changes to the Company’s accounting policies resulting from its adoption of IFRS 9 are summarised below:
i.

Classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI) and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
IFRS 9 classification is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flows.
The standard eliminates the previous IAS 39 categories of held to maturity, loans and receivables and available for sale.
IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of financial liabilities therefore, its
adoption did not have a significant effect on the Company’s accounting policies related to financial liabilities.
For an explanation of how the Company classifies financial assets under IFRS 9, see note 4.7.1 to the financial statements.

ii.

Impairment of financial assets
In relation to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred loss model
under IAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected
credit losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary
for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized. The Company has classified its financial assets as measured at
amortized cost. IFRS 9 has scoped out impairment for financial assets measured at 'fair value through profit or loss' where as for
financial assets measured at amortized cost there are impairment requirements.
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The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss
allowance for all trade and other receivables. Impairment losses related to trade and other receivables are presented separately in the
statement of profit or loss. Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Management used
actual credit loss experience over past years to base the calculation of ECL on adoption of IFRS 9.
For assets in the scope of IFRS 9 impairment model, impairment losses are generally expected to increase and become more volatile.
The Company has determined that the application of IFRS 9's impairment requirements at 1 July 2018 results in an additional
allowance for impairment as follows :
Rupees
Loss allowances at 30 June 2018 under IAS 39
284,573
Trade receivables
Additional impairment recognized 1 July 2018 on
trade receivables as at 30 June 2018 (Rs. 4,672,117 net of tax)*

6,086,404

Loss allowances at 1 July 2018 under IFRS 9

6,370,977

* Deferred tax assets of Rs. 1.414 million was recognized in respect of additional impairment recognized at 1 July 2018 on trade
receivables as at 30 June 2018. Resultantly, deferred tax liability decreased from Rs. 32.784 million as at 30 June 2018 to Rs. 31.370
million as at 1 July 2018.
iii.

Change in classification of financial assets and financial liabilities on the date of initial application of IFRS 9
The following table and the accompanying notes below explain the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and the new
measurement categories under IFRS 9 for each class of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities as at 1 July 2018.
The effect of adopting IFRS 9 on the carrying amounts of financial assets at 01 July 2018 relates solely to the new impairment
requirements.
Note

Orignal classification
under IAS 39

Financial Assets

New
Orignal
New Carrying
Remeasuremnet
classification
Carrying
Amount
under IFRS 9
Amount
---------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ----------------------------------------------

Long / short term deposits

(a)

Loans and receivables

Amortized cost

5,505,387

-

5,505,387

Long term loans

(a)

Loans and receivables

Amortized cost

167,555

-

167,555

Trade receivables

(a)

Loans and receivables

Amortized cost

49,187,628

Cash and bank balances

(a)

Loans and receivables

Amortized cost

1,257,178
56,117,748

(6,370,977)
(6,370,977)

42,816,651
1,257,178
49,746,771

Financial liabilities

(a)

Long term finance - secured

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

77,000,000

-

77,000,000

Trade and other payables

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

97,605,472

-

97,605,472

Accrued markup

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

3,304,180

-

3,304,180

Short term borrowings - secured

Amortised cost

Amortised cost

221,708,152

-

221,708,152

399,617,804

-

399,617,804

These financial assets were originally classified as loan and receivables under IAS 39 and are now classified as measured at amortized
cost under IFRS 9.

Transition
The Company has used an exemption not to restate comparative information for prior periods with respect to classification and measurement
(including impairment) requirements. Therefore, differences in the carrying amounts of financial assets resulting from the adoption of IFRS 9
are recognised in unappropriated profit as at 01 July 2018. Accordingly, the information presented for 2018 does not generally reflect the
requirements of IFRS 9, but rather those of IAS 39.

58

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The Company has consistently applied the following accounting policies to all periods presented in these financial statements, except if
mentioned otherwise (refer note 3).

4.1

Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets
Initial recognition
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured reliably.
Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when the items are in the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the management.
Measurement
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of property, plant and
equipment includes:
(a)

its purchase price including import duties, non refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebates;

(b)

any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by the management; and

(c)

borrowing costs, if any.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major
components) of property, plant and equipment.
Subsequent cost
The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of the item if it is probable that
the future economic benefits embodied within that part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the part so replaced is derecognized. The costs relating to day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in profit
or loss as incurred.
Depreciation
Depreciation is charged to income on a diminishing balance method at the rates mentioned in the note 5.1 except for lease hold land which is
depreciated on a straight line basis. Depreciation is charged from the date the asset is put into operation and discontinued from the date the
asset is retired.
The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted if appropriate.
Capital work in progress
Capital work in progress is stated at cost less impairment, if any and consists of expenditure incurred and advances made in respect of
tangible and intangible assets during the course of their construction and installation. Transfers are made to relevant assets category as and
when assets are available for intended use.
Disposal
The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset is recognized as an income or expense in the profit or loss.
4.2

Intangible assets
Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any.
Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure on intangible assets is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific
assets to which it relates. All other expenditures are expensed out as incurred.
Amortization
Amortization is charged to profit or loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets unless such lives are
indefinite. Amortization on additions to intangible assets is charged from the date of use and discontinued from the date the asset is retired.
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4.3

Stores and spares
Stores, spares and loose tools are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value, less provision for impairment, if any.
Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon less impairment, if any.
Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is determined based on management's estimate regarding their future
usability.
Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to be incurred
to make the sale.

4.4

Stock in trade
Stock in trade, except for stock in transit is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value less provision for impairment, if any.
Cost incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows.
- Raw and packing material are recorded at purchase cost on weighted average basis.
- Finished goods and work in process are valued at average production cost which includes cost of direct material, direct expenses and
overheads.
Stock in transit is valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon upto the reporting date.
Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost necessary to be incurred
to make the sale.

4.5

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of the Company's non financial assets, other than deferred tax assets and inventories are reviewed at each balance
sheet date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount, being higher
of value of use and fair value less costs to sell, is estimated. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of
assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets.
An impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

4.6

Assets held under ijarah financing
Assets held under Ijarah financing are accounted for using the guidelines of Islamic Financial Accounting Standard - 2 (IFAS 2), "Ijarah".
These assets are not recognized on the Company's statement of financial position and payments made under Ijarah financing are recognized
in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the lease.

4.7

Financial instruments

4.7.1

Financial assets

4.7.1.1

Classification

4.7.1.1.1 Policies applicable before 01 July 2018
The management determined the appropriate classification of its financial assets in accordance with the requirements of International
Accounting Standard 39 (IAS 39) 'Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement' at the time of purchase of financial assets. The
financial assets of the Company were categorised as follows:
a)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset was classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it was classified as held for trading or was designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial assets that were acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term fluctuations
in prices were classified in 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category.

b)

Loans and receivables
These were non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that were not quoted in an active market. The
Company's loans and receivables comprised of trade debts, loans and advances, deposits, other receivables and cash and bank
balances in the balance sheet.
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c)

Held-to-maturity
These were financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity for which the Company had the positive intent and
ability to hold till maturity.

d)

Available-for-sale financial assets
Financial assets intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which could be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes
in equity prices, were classified as 'available for sale'. Available for sale financial instruments were those non-derivative financial
assets that were designated as available for sale or were not classified either as a) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
b) loans and receivables; or c) held to maturity.

All of the Company's financial assets were classified at amortized cost as at 30 June 2018.
4.7.1.1.2 Policies applicable from 01 July 2018
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost, FVOCI; or FVTPL.
A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
-

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

-

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:
-

it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets;

-

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes
in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. On initial recognition,
the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at
FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
Business model assessment
The company's financial assets comprise of loans and receivables, the assessment of business model for other financial assets is made on a
portfolio / asset by asset basis. The information considered in making this assessment includes:
-

the stated policies and objectives for the asset and the operation of those policies in practice. In particular, whether management’s
strategy focuses on earning contractual interest revenue, maintaining a particular interest rate profile or realising cash flows through
the sale of the assets;

-

how the performance of the portfolio / asset is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

-

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model) and its strategy
for how those risks are managed;

-

how managers of the business are compensated (e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets managed or the
contractual cash flows collected); and

-

the frequency, volume and timing of sales in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and its expectations about future sales activity.
However, information about sales activity is not considered in isolation, but as part of an overall assessment of how the Company’s
stated objective for managing the financial assets is achieved and how cash flows are realised.

Financial assets that are held for trading or managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL
because they are neither held to collect contractual cash flows nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and to sell financial assets.
Assessment of whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest
For the purposes of this assessment on debt securities, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding
during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit
margin.
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In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes
assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that
it would not meet this condition. In making the assessment, the Company considers:
-

contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;
leverage features;
prepayment and extension terms;
terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse loans); and
features that modify consideration of the time value of money (e.g. periodical reset of interest rates).

On the basis of above assessment the Company determined that Held-to-collect business model is relevant for the Company as its financial
assets comprise of only cash and cash equivalents and trade and other receivables. These financial assets are held to collect contractual
cash flow.
4.7.1.2

Reclassifications
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Company changes its business
model for managing financial assets.

4.7.1.3

Initial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised at the time the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets
are initially recognised at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial assets.

4.7.1.4

Subsequent measurement

4.7.1.4.1 Policies applicable before 01 July 2018
Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets were valued as follows:
a)

'Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' and 'available-for-sale'
A financial asset was classified as at fair value through profit or loss if it was classified as held for trading or was designated as such
on initial recognition. Financial assets that were acquired principally for the purpose of generating profit from short-term fluctuations
in prices were classified in 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category.
Financial assets intended to be held for an indefinite period of time, which could be sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes
in equity prices, were classified as 'available for sale'. Available for sale financial instruments were those non-derivative financial
assets that were designated as available for sale or were not classified either as (a) financial assets at fair value through profit or loss;
(b) loans and receivables or (c) held to maturity.

b)

'Loans and receivables' and 'held-to-maturity'
Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity financial assets were carried at amortized cost.

4.7.1.4.2 Policies applicable from 01 July 2018
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Financial assets
measured at
amortized cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The amortized cost is
reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets at
FVTPL

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any interest / markup or
dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Equity Investments
at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as income in the statement of profit
or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and
losses are recognized in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.

Debt Investments
at FVOCI

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Other net
gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income. On de-recognition, gains and losses accumulated in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of profit or loss.
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4.7.1.5

Trade receivables, loans and advances, deposits and other receivables

4.7.1.5.1 Policies applicable before 01 July 2018
These were classified as loans and receivables and were recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost or
cost, as the case may be, less provision for impairment, if any. A provision for impairment was established when there was an objective
evidence that the Company would not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Items considered
irrecoverable were written off.
4.7.1.5.2 Policies applicable from 01 July 2018
These are classified at amortized cost and are initially recognised when they are originated and measured at fair value of consideration
receivable. These assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery. Actual credit loss experience over past years is
used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.
4.7.1.6

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for cash flow purposes include cash in hand and balances held with banks and short term running finance
availed by the Company, which are payable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

4.7.1.7

Impairment

4.7.1.7.1 Policies applicable before 01 July 2018
A financial asset was assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there was any objective evidence that it was impaired. A
financial asset was considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicated that one or more events had a negative effect on the estimated
future cash flows of that asset.
Individually significant financial assets were tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets were assessed
collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics. All impairment losses were recognised in statement of profit or loss. An
impairment loss was reversed if the reversal could be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised.
4.7.1.7.2 Policies applicable from 01 July 2018
The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs in respect of financial assets measured at amortized cost.
The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:
-

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

-

other debt securities and bank balance for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade and other receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating ECLs,
the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment
and including forward-looking information.
The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 240 days. Lifetime ECLs are the
ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that
result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Company is exposed to credit risk. Based on management assessment, no ECL was required, except trade receivables, since the Company's
financial assets at amortized cost are generally short-term in nature and held with counterparties with low credit risk.
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the Gross carrying amount of the assets.
The Gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering of a financial
asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off
based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's
procedures for recovery of amounts due.
4.7.1.8

Derecognition
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and
where the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.
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4.7.2

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or 'at fair value through profit or loss' (FVTPL). A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense
and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also
recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Financial liabilities are derecognized when the contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or have expired or when the financial liability's cash flows have been substantially modified.

4.7.2.1

Mark-up bearing borrowings and borrowing costs
Mark-up bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, less attributable transaction cost. Subsequent to initial recognition, markup bearing borrowings are stated at amortized cost with any difference between cost and redemption value being recognised in profit and
loss account over the period of borrowings on an effective interest basis.
Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which these are incurred, except to the extent that they are directly
attributable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset (i.e. an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale) in which case these are capitalised as part of cost of that asset.

4.7.2.2

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and subsequently measured at amortized
cost.

4.7.3

Derivative financial instruments
Derivatives are recognised initially at fair value; any attributable transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. Subsequent to
initial recognition, when a derivative financial instrument is not designated in a hedge relationship that qualifies for hedge accounting or
when the derivative does not qualifies for hedge accounting are measured at fair value and all changes in its fair value are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated using appropriate valuation techniques. These are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive and liabilities when the fair value is negative.

4.7.4

Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when there is a legally
enforceable right to set-off the recognised amounts and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.8

Investments in associates
Entities in which the Company has significant influence directly or indirectly but not control and which are neither subsidiaries nor joint
ventures of the members of the Company are associates and are accounted for under the equity method of accounting (equity accounted
investees).
These investments are initially recognized at cost. The financial statements include the associates' share of profit or loss and movements in
other comprehensive income, after adjustments, if any, to align the accounting policies with those of the Company, from the date that
significant influence commences until the date it ceases. Share of post acquisition profit/loss of associates is recognized in the profit or loss.
Distributions received from associates reduce the carrying amount of investment. When the Company's share of losses exceeds its interest
in an equity accounted investee, the carrying amount of that investment (including any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Company's net investment in the associate) is reduced to nil and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent
that the Company has an obligation or has made payments on behalf of the investee.
The carrying amount of investments in associates is reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the investments is estimated which is higher of its value in use and its
fair value less costs to sell. An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount and is charged to profit
or loss. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in estimates used to determine the recoverable amount but limited to the
extent of carrying amount that would have been determined if no impairment loss had been recognized. A reversal of impairment loss is
recognized in the profit or loss.

4.9

Employee Benefits

4.9.1

Compensated absences
The Company accounts for all accumulated compensated absences when employees render services that increase their entitlement to future
compensated absences.
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4.9.2

Post retirement benefits

4.9.2.1

Defined contribution plan - Provident fund
The Company operates a provident fund scheme for its permanent employees. Obligation for contributions to the fund are recognized as an
expense in profit or loss when they are due. A trust has been established and its approval has been obtained from the Commissioner of
Income tax. Monthly contributions are made by the Company and its employees to the fund as per Company policy.

4.10

Taxation
Current
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account tax credits and rebates
available, if any.
Deferred
Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method, providing for all the temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that are enacted or substantively enacted
by the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible differences,
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits or taxable temporary
difference will be available against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax asset is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefits will be realized.

4.11

Foreign currencies translations
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the exchange rate at the reporting
date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the
exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in the statement of profit
or loss and presented with in other income / operating expenses.

4.12

Revenue recognition

4.12.1

Policies applicable before 01 July 2018
Revenue was recognized to the extent that was probable that the future economic benefits would flow to the Company and the revenue
could be measured reliably. Revenue was measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.
Revenue from the sale of the products was recognised when significant risk and rewards were transferred to the buyer, that is, when the
goods were dispatched.

4.12.2

Policies applicable after 01 July 2018
Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer. Revenue from operations of the Company are
recognized when the goods are provided, and thereby the performance obligations are satisfied. Revenue consists of baby care and oral care
which generally include single performance obligation. The Company's contract performance obligations are fulfilled at the point in time
when the goods are dispatched to the customer. Invoices are generated and revenue is recognised at that point in time, as the control has
been transferred to the customers. Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable, excluding amount of sales
tax. The Company assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria that must be met before revenue is recognised.

4.13

Provisions
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Provision are
reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

4.14

Dividend and appropriation
Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriation to / from reserves is recognized in the period in which these are
approved.

4.15

Earnings per share
The Company presents earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing profit or loss for the year attributable
to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
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5

Property, plant and equipment
Operating fixed assets
Capital work in progress

5.1

Operating fixed assets
Description

Note

Building on
lease hold
land

Leasehold
land

Plant &
machinery

Office
equipments

Furniture and
fittings

Note

2019
(Rupees)

2018
(Rupees)

5.1
5.6

597,427,238
10,438,519

438,700,283
2,422,503

607,865,757

441,122,786

Computers

Motor
Vehicles

Total

----------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------------------------------------------------Net carrying value as at 1 July 2018
Opening net book value (NBV)
Additions / transfers
Disposals (at NBV)
Depreciation charge
Balance as at 30 June 2019 (NBV)

5.4
5.2

117,158,681
(1,199,278)
115,959,403

66,233,079
21,126,860
(6,947,446)
80,412,493

241,744,751
176,445,337
(5,018,421)
(26,698,767)
386,472,900

5,337,928
356,069
(169,652)
(777,565)
4,746,780

4,722,841
3,394,278
(8,575)
(721,293)
7,387,251

2,877,128
61,500
(139,352)
(851,565)
1,947,711

625,875
(125,175)
500,700

438,700,283
201,384,044
(5,336,000)
(37,321,089)
597,427,238

119,927,844
182,853,030
634,026,605
(3,968,441) (102,440,538) (247,553,705)
115,959,403
80,412,492
386,472,900

7,672,730
(2,925,948)
4,746,782

10,710,319
(3,323,068)
7,387,251

6,160,122
(4,212,412)
1,947,710

5,927,404
(5,426,704)
500,700

967,278,054
(369,850,816)
597,427,238

239,926,268
36,886,096
(10,983,560)
(24,084,053)
241,744,751

4,532,339
1,653,509
(103,410)
(744,510)
5,337,928

4,297,824
898,623
(473,606)
4,722,841

3,835,452
270,000
(40,208)
(1,188,116)
2,877,128

1,860,952
(948,631)
(286,446)
625,875

443,510,654
39,708,228
(12,075,809)
(32,442,790)
438,700,283

161,726,170
489,169,633
(95,493,091) (247,424,882)
66,233,079
241,744,751

7,700,131
(2,362,203)
5,337,928

7,331,041
(2,608,200)
4,722,841

6,598,052
(3,720,924)
2,877,128

5,927,404
(5,301,529)
625,875

798,380,275
(359,679,992)
438,700,283

Gross carrying value as at 30 June 2019
Cost
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book value
Net carrying value as at 1 July 2017
Opening net book value (NBV)
Additions / transfers
Disposals (at NBV)
Depreciation charge
Balance as at 30 June 2018 (NBV)

5.2

3,995,883
185,061,936
114,362,077 (114,362,077)
(1,199,279)
(4,466,780)
117,158,681
66,233,079

Gross carrying value as at 30 June 2018
Cost
Accumulated depreciation and impairment
Net book value
Depreciation rate (% per annum)

119,927,844
(2,769,163)
117,158,681
1

10

10

10 & 30

10

30

Note

5.2

The depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
26
27
28

Cost of sales
Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative and general expenses

5.3
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20

2019

2018

(Rupees)

(Rupees)

33,409,052
1,907,577
2,004,460
37,321,089

31,370,954
363,297
708,539
32,442,790

Particulars of Company's immovable operating fixed assets are as follows:
Particulars

Location

Building
Office premises
Office premises
Factory

PECHS, Karachi
Business Avenue, PECHS, Karachi
Landhi Industrial Area, Karachi

13,165.24
1,945.00
95,309.00

Land
Leasehold
Leasehold
Leasehold

Landhi Industrial Area, Karachi
PECHS, Karachi
Kot Lakhpat, Lahore

12,279.00 Sq. yards
2,041.10 Sq. yards
15 Marla 50 Sq. fts.
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Area

Sq. fts.
Sq. fts.
Sq. fts.

5.4

Details of property, plant and equipment disposed off during the year:
Description

Accumulated
Book
Sale
Gain /
Mode of disposal
depreciation
Value
proceeds
(loss)
----------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------Cost

6,274,445
5,090,586

4,330,624
3,275,084

1,943,821
1,815,502

2,300
2,300

(1,941,521)
(1,813,202)

Negotiation
Negotiation

21,121,234

19,544,557

1,576,677

410,729

(1,165,948)

Various

2019

32,486,265

27,150,265

5,336,000

415,329

(4,920,671)

2018

32,082,564

20,006,755

12,075,809

3,253,934

(8,821,875)

Machinery
"
Others

5.5

Details of property, plant and equipment - Acquired under Diminishing musharakah arrangements

Note

Leasehold Land
Building on leasehold Land
Plant and machinery
20
5.6

6

6.1

Particular
of buyers

Mr. M. Pervaiz
Mr. M. Pervaiz
Various

2019
(Rupees)

2018
(Rupees)

112,061,981
7,902,077
159,818,808

113,212,029
8,780,085
-

279,782,866

121,992,114

Capital work in progress
Advance to suppliers

6,202,062

1,271,924

Plant and machinery

4,236,457

1,150,579

10,438,519

2,422,503

Cost
Opening balance
Additions / disposals

4,227,334
-

4,227,334
-

Closing Balance

4,227,334

4,227,334

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Amortization
Opening balance
Charge for the year

6.1

4,194,000
33,334

4,160,667
33,333

Closing Balance

6.2

4,227,334

4,194,000

Carrying amount

-

33,334

Amortization Rate

33.33%

33.33%

11,111
11,111
11,112

11,111
11,111
11,111

33,334

33,333

The amortization charge for the year has been allocated as follows:
Cost of sales
Selling and distribution expenses
Administrative and general expenses

26
27
28

6.2

Intangible assets as at 30 June 2019 include items having an aggregate cost of Rs. 4.23 million (2018: Rs. 4.23 million) that have been fully amortized
and are still in use of the Company.

7

INVESTMENT IN EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEE
This represents advance payments made for the purchase of ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each of Saaf Sehatmand Services (Pvt) limited that represents
10% (i.e 400,000 shares ) of the total holding of the Company and shares are yet to be issued thereagainst.

8

LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES
Considered good - secured
Due from employees

8.1

8.1

-

12,887

Reconciliation of carrying amount of loans
Opening balance
Disbursements during the year
Repayments during the year
Closing balance

167,555
296,000
(269,783)
193,772

1,130,863
458,000
(1,421,308)
167,555

Current portion receivable within one year

(193,772)

(154,668)

-

12,887
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8.2

These loans are interest free and have been given to executives and other employees of the company for purchase of vehicles or for personal use in
accordance with their terms of employment and are secured against retirement benefits. These loans are to be repaid over a period of two years in
equal monthly installments.

8.3

Long term loans have been carried at cost as the effect of carrying these balances at amortized cost would not be material in the overall context of
these financial statements.

8.4

Maximum aggregate amount of loan due from employees at any time during the year was Rs. 0.399 million (2018: Rs. 1.020 million).

9

STORES AND SPARES
It includes provision against slow moving stores and spares amounting to Rs. 4.156 million (2018: Rs. 1.080 million).

10

Note

STOCK-IN-TRADE
Manufacturing:
Raw and packing materials
- in hand
- in transit
Work-in-process
Finished goods

10.1

Trading:
- in hand
- in transit

2019
(Rupees)

2018
(Rupees)

266,400,674
28,560,663
294,961,337

147,487,967
147,487,967

19,439,910
54,395,435

12,282,326
32,384,370

23,520,461
23,520,461

56,243,103
2,758,512
59,001,615

392,317,143

251,156,278

10.1

This includes finished goods with cost of Rs. 9.240 million which are being carried at their net realizable value of Rs. 8.075 million.

11

TRADE RECEIVABLES
Related parties - unsecured
Premier Agencies
Pharmevo (Private) Limited
Scitech Health (Private) Limited
Memon Medical Institute
Unsecured
Considered good
Considered doubtful
Provision for doubtful trade receivables

11.1

11,828,604
899,964
1,002,154
106,976

13,233,126
2,371,697
186,369

11.1 & 11.2

13,837,698

15,791,192

11.3

9,136,575
7,915,401
(7,915,401)

33,396,436
284,573
(284,573)

9,136,575

33,396,436

22,974,273

49,187,628

11,932,641
902,903
1,002,154

15,093,108
401,374
296,710

13,837,698

15,791,192

The ageing of amount due from related parties:
Not past due
Past due 1 - 30 days
Past due 31 - 180 days

11.2

Maximum aggregate amount outstanding at any time during the year calculated by reference to month-end balance of Premier Agencies is Rs. 119.88
million (2018: Rs. 140.78 million), Memon Medical Institute is Rs. 0.21 million (2018: Rs. 0.21 million), Pharmevo (Private) Limited is Rs. 0.89 million
(2018: Rs. 0.06 million), Scitech Health (Private) Limited is Rs. 2.99 million (2018: Rs. 2.37 million).

11.3

Provision for doubtful receivables
Opening balance
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284,573

-

Additional impairment recognised at 01 July 2018 on trade receivables as at 30 June 2018

6,086,404

-

Impairment loss on trade receivables during the year

1,544,424

284,573

7,915,401

284,573
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Note
12

8.1

Advances - considered good
Suppliers for goods and services
Advances to others

193,772

154,668

796,441
1,805,939

2,897,562
7,520,979

2,796,152

10,573,209

5,154,800
1,543,997
192,368
7,591,552

42,353,570
693,997
310,816
-

14,482,717

43,358,383

77,598,633
25,969,324
(36,851,367)

46,229,461
17,793,978
(30,822,162)

66,716,590

33,201,277

TRADE DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
LC margin
Security deposits
Prepayments
Sales tax receivables

14

2018
(Rupees)

LOANS AND ADVANCES
Loan - secured and considered good
Current portion of long term loans and advances to employees

13

2019
(Rupees)

TAXATION - NET
Advance taxation
Refunds due from government
Provision for taxation
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14.1

During the year ended 30 June 2017, Federal board of revenue had issued notice to the company for the monitoring of withholding taxes and based
on tax advisor, tax proceedings finalized upto 2016 and proceedings for tax years 2017 and 2018 are in process and potential tax liability can not be
estimated at the current stage of proceedings.

15

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand
Local currency
Foreign currency

139,065
578,555
717,620

With banks - in current accounts

15.1

15.1

This includes balances amounting to Rs. 0.105 million (2018: Rs. 0.375 million) with Shariah compliant banks.

16

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

124,851
309,875
434,726

826,362

822,452

1,543,982

1,257,178

2019
2018
(Number of shares)
3,000,000
900,000

3,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued for cash
900,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each issued as fully paid bonus shares

30,000,000
9,000,000

30,000,000
9,000,000

3,900,000

3,900,000

39,000,000

39,000,000

16.1

Percentage of shares held by Directors, Chief Executive Officer and their spouses as at 30 June 2019 is 74.46% (2018: 74.46%).

16.2

There is no shareholder agreement for voting rights, board selection, rights of first refusal and block voting.

17

LOAN FROM A DIRECTOR
During the year, the Company has obtained a long term interest free loan from the Chief Executive Officer for an amount of Rs. 21.7 million. This loan
is unsecured with no maturity period and repayable at the discretion of the Company. The loan has been classified as per the requirements of
Technical Release - TR 32 ' Accounting Directors' Loan' issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan.
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18

CAPITAL RESERVE
Capital reserve includes share premium reserve as per section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017 this can be used for the following purposes:
- to write off preliminary expenses of the Company;
- to write off expenses of, or the commission paid or discount allowed on, any issue of shares of the Company; and
- in providing for the premium payable on the redemption of any redeemable preference shares of the Company.
The Company may also use the share premium account to issue bonus shares to its members.

19

Note

DEFERRED TAXATION

2019
(Rupees)

2018
(Rupees)

Deferred tax credits / (debits) arising in respect of :

20

Taxable temporary differences
Property, plant and equipment

54,800,406

35,313,801

Deductible temporary differences
Provisions
Trade and other receivables, including advances
Inventories

(2,296,430)
(2,928,897)

(2,211,945)
(66,384)
(251,820)

49,575,079

32,783,652

20.1

55,000,000

77,000,000

20.2

12,352,457

-

20.2

7,660,642

-

20.2

8,404,614

-

LONG TERM FINANCING - SECURED
Installment Repayment
payable
period
Bank Al-Habib Limited - Islamic banking

Quarterly

2017-21

Meezan Bank Limited

Quarterly

2019-20

Meezan Bank Limited

Quarterly

2019-21

Meezan Bank Limited

Quarterly

2019-24

Meezan Bank Limited

Quarterly

2019-24

Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities
Bank Al-Habib Limited - Islamic banking
Meezan Bank Limited

Profit
rate
0.50% above 6 months KIBOR
1% above
3 months
1% above
KIBOR
3 months
1% above
KIBOR
3 months
1.2% above
KIBOR
3 months
KIBOR

20.3

20.1

102,342,012

-

185,759,725

77,000,000

(55,000,000)
(36,497,270)
(91,497,270)

(22,000,000)
(22,000,000)

94,262,455

55,000,000

20.1

The Company has a long term loan arrangement with Bank Al-Habib Limited - Islamic banking for an amount of Rs. 110 million (2018: Rs. 110 million).
The term of the loan is 5 years from the date of disbursement, repayable in 20 equal quarterly installments started from March 2017. During the year,
the Company had made repayment of Rs. 22 million (2018: Rs. 22 million) on which, profit was 7.4% to 13.55% (2018: 6.70%) per annum. The
Company has total facility of Rs. 222.347 million. Islamic finance under this diminishing musharakah is secured by a equitable mortgage of head
office property and personal guarantee of Chairman of the Board of Directors. This loan has been classified to current portion as per the
requirements of IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' as there were certain covenants mentioned in respective loan agreement which were not
met at the reporting date.

20.2

During the year, the Company has a long term loan arrangement with Meezan Bank Limited for an amount of Rs. 34.453 million. The term of the loan
varies between 2 to 5 years from the date of disbursement, repayable in 8 to 20 equal quarterly installments. The Company has total facility of Rs. 95
million. Islamic finance under this diminishing musharakah is secured by a first pari passu hypothecation charge over all present and future plant
and machinery of the Company where ever situated.

20.3

During the year ended 30 June 2019, the Company entered into a long term loan arrangement with Meezan Bank Limited of an amount of Rs. 102.34
million. The term of the loan is 5 years from the date of disbursement, repayable in 20 equal quarterly installments started from August 2019. The
Company has total facility of Rs. 125 million. Islamic finance under this diminishing musharakah is secured by a mortgage of Baby Care Machine
with 10% margin (Refer Note 5) and personal guarantee of Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer.
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Note
21

48,078,999
8,748,767
24,382
1,712,586
4,596,699
18,194,696
-

61,853,979
24,868,111
24,382
10,669,400
8,637,788
1,447,505
5,240,671
1,012,408
189,600

81,356,129

113,943,844

157,184
7,942,335
649,248

4,668,487
19,617,624
582,000

8,748,767

24,868,111

5,240,671
4,596,699
9,837,370
155,898
9,993,268
(5,396,569)

4,441,282
5,240,671
9,681,953
235,768
9,917,721
(4,677,050)

4,596,699

5,240,671

Profit accrued on shariah arrangements:
Murabaha financing
Running musharakah

4,219,542
5,719,781

1,565,416
1,378,256

Accrued rent on diminishing musharakah

3,173,229

360,508

13,112,552

3,304,180

193,912,819
187,004,382

133,046,283
88,661,869

380,917,201

221,708,152

21.1

21.2

Accrued liabilities
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Accrued expenses
Auditors' remuneration payable

21.2

Workers' profit participation fund
Opening Balance
Provision made during the year
Interest on funds utilised in the Company's business

31

Amounts paid

22

23

2018
(Rupees)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors
Accrued liabilities
Retention money
Gratuity payable
Sales tax payable
Workers' welfare fund
Workers' profit participation fund
Advance from customers - unsecured
Others

21.1

2019
(Rupees)

ACCRUED PROFIT

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS - SECURED
Murabaha finance
Running musharakah

23.1
23.2

23.1

This represent murabaha finance obtained under profit arrangements and are secured against hypothecation of moveable fixed assets and
hypothecation of current assets of the Company. The Company enjoys a total facility of Rs. 350 million (2018: Rs. 250 million) out of which Rs 50
million (2018: Rs 50 million) is interchangeable with running musharakah. During the year, profit rate on such arrangements ranged between
KIBOR + 0.30% to KIBOR + 0.75% (2018: KIBOR + 0.30% to KIBOR + 0.75%) per annum.

23.2

This represent running musharakah obtained under profit arrangements and are secured against hypothecation of moveable fixed assets and
hypothecation of current assets of the Company. The Company enjoys a total facility of Rs. 250 million (2018: Rs. 250 million) out of which Rs 200
million (2018: Rs 200 million) is interchangeable with murabaha finance. During the year, profit rate on such arrangements ranged between KIBOR
+ 0.30% to KIBOR + 0.75% (2018: KIBOR + 0.30% to KIBOR + 0.50%) per annum.

23.3

The Company is currently availing Islamic mode of financing from the Bank Al-Habib Limited, Meezan Bank Limited, Habib Metropolitan Bank
Limited. Facilities availed during the year includes letter of credit, bank guarantee, musharakah and murabaha financing.

24

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

24.1

Contingencies:

24.1.1

During the year 1999, Beecham Group Plc filed a suit in Honorable High Court of Sindh against the Company for permanent injunction, restraining
infringement, passing off the trademark "Flex". Beecham Group Plc also filed a JM in Honorable High Court of Sindh in 1999, for rectification of the
Company's registered trademark "Shield Flex". The Company, in relation to defending the above mentioned cases and the trademark for Rs. 42
million (2018: Rs. 42 million), submitted a bank guarantee of Rs. 5 million (2018: Rs. 5 million) as per order of Honorable High Court of Sindh passed
on 13 August 1999. Based on the Company's legal counsel advice, the management is hopeful that both cases will be decided in Company's
favour and hence no provision has been made in these financial statements.
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24.1.2

In addition to the aforesaid guarantee, contingent liability in respect of other guarantees as at 30 June 2019 was Rs. 5.85 million (2018: Rs. 4.09
million). Out of this, Rs. 4 million (2018: Rs. 4 million) and Rs. 1.76 million (2018: Rs.NIL) represents the bank guarantee issued to Pakistan State Oil
against commercial and fleet cards for fuel & diesel and to K-Electric Limited as security deposit respectively.

24.1.3

The Company has filed a suit for infringement and passing off its Trade Mark Shield on May 8, 2014 against Dalda Foods (Private) Limited and
vide order dated September 16, 2014 temporary injunction till disposal of the suit was confirmed by the Court. Later on Dalda Foods (Private)
Limited preferred an apeal against the confirmation of stay order which was allowed by Division Bench of Honorable High Court of Sindh on
March 19, 2016. Shield Corporation Limited appealed before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan. The Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan
referred the case to the Honorable High Court with direction to decide the case on merits. Based on the Company's counsel advice, the
management is confident that the case is likely to be decided in the Company's favour.

24.1.4

The Company has filed a constitutional petition in Honourable High Court of Sindh on 6 March 2017 against impugned recovery notice dated 20
January 2017 for Rs. 2.5 million of Karachi Municipal Corporation (KMC) on account of Municipal Utility Charges Tax (MUCT) arrears in which
stay was granted by the Honorable High Court of Sindh on 7 March 2017. Based on the Company's legal counsel advice, the management is
hopeful for the favourable outcome of the court case and hence no provision has been made in these financial statements.

24.1.5

Additional Commissioner, Punjab Revenue Authority (PRA) had issued an order dated 9 March 2017 demanded Rs. 4.17 million on account of nonwithholding of sales tax on services along with default surcharge and penalty. The Company filed an appeal to Commissioner Appeals-PRA
against the order. The Commissioner Appeals-PRA, vide Order in Appeal dated 5 November 2017 deleted the sales tax demand of Rs. 1.95 million
along with penalty. However, the Commissioner Appeal-PRA had upheld the remaining sales tax demand of Rs. 2.22 million along with default
surcharge. The Company has paid the principal demand to PRA after recovering from service providers and filed an appeal before the Appellate
Tribunal-PRA for waiver of default surcharge relating thereto. Based on the Company's tax consultant advice, the management is confident that
the case will be decided in the Company's favour and hence no provision has been made in these financial statements.

24.1.6

The Company has filed a suit in Honourable High Court of Sindh on March 19, 2019 and in Court of Senior Civil Judge, Lahore on June 29, 2019
against its ex-employee, Naeem Ilyas Khanani s/o Muhammad Ilyas & others for breach of contract. The Company has claimed
damages/compensation and other reliefs as the Court deems fit from the defendants.

24.2

Commitments:

24.2.1

The Company has letter of credit commitments for purchases of stock in trade and spares amounting to Rs. 62.258 million (2018: Rs. 72.222 million).

24.2.2

The Company has letter of credit and other commitments for capital expenditures amounting to Rs. 163.670 million (2018: Rs. 32.563 million).

Note
25

Discounts
Export
Baby Care
Oral Care

25.1
25.1

1,573,560,264
749,165,707
(339,613,436)
1,983,112,535

1,424,231,885
713,964,145
(313,505,939)
1,824,690,091

(209,623,358)
1,773,489,177

(163,124,452)
1,661,565,639

2,846,997
2,458,698
5,305,695

4,451,838
12,880,492
17,332,330

1,778,794,872

1,678,897,969

17,245,900

Summary of export sales during the year:
Country

Geographical location

Afghanistan

Asia

3,454,389

Qatar

Asia

1,851,306

Ireland

Europe

5,305,695
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2018
(Rupees)

SALES - NET
Local
Baby Care
Oral Care
Sales tax

25.1

2019
(Rupees)
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86,430
17,332,330

26

2019
(Rupees)

2018
(Rupees)

602,140,923
149,253,510
48,823,839
26,138,830
33,409,052
11,111
13,619,219
6,078,660
191,050
2,329,442
163,177
555,518
1,403,019
3,731,751

558,587,428
121,618,249
38,254,036
11,268,890
31,370,954
11,111
14,354,287
1,920,300
207,368
2,094,484
121,789
398,986
1,183,968
3,043,386

887,849,101

784,435,236

Opening Inventory of work in process
Closing Inventory of work in process

12,282,326
(19,439,910)

10,501,331
(12,282,326)

(7,157,584)

(1,780,995)

Cost of goods manufactured

880,691,517

782,654,241

Opening Inventory of finished goods (including trading goods)
Purchases of trading goods
Closing Inventory of finished goods (including trading goods)

88,627,473
330,654,735
(77,915,896)

99,688,155
273,701,726
(88,627,473)

341,366,312

284,762,408

1,222,057,829

1,067,416,649

147,487,967
721,053,630
868,541,597
(266,400,674)

107,673,952
598,401,443
706,075,395
(147,487,967)

602,140,923

558,587,428

133,403,138
2,753,877
13,096,495

112,630,590
5,374,899
2,554,061
1,058,699

149,253,510

121,618,249

124,376,219
39,672,992
1,907,577
11,111
116,755,409
876,229
2,249,109
89,575
416,502
41,516,899
3,738,450
6,883,717

151,962,289
34,112,244
363,297
11,111
173,903,963
1,692,033
1,728,518
385,645
171,819
40,369,590
10,922,134
2,592,137

338,493,789

418,214,780

COST OF SALES
Raw and packaging material consumed
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Fuel and power
Stores and spares consumed
Depreciation
Amortization of intangible assets
Repairs and maintenance
Traveling and conveyance
Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance
Freight
Printing and stationery
Postage, telegram and telephone
Others

26.1

Note
26.1
26.2

5.2
6.1

Raw and packaging materials consumed
Opening stock
Purchases
Closing stock

26.2

Detail of salaries, wages and other benefits
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Gratuity
Provident fund contributions
Full and final settlement

27

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Traveling and conveyance
Depreciation
Amortization of intangible assets
Advertisement and sales promotion
Postage, telegram and telephone
Vehicle repairs and maintenance
Printing & stationery
Insurance
Freight
Legal and professional
Others

27.1
5.2
6.1
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27.1

Detail of salaries, wages and other benefits

Note

Salaries, wages and other benefits
Gratuity
Provident fund contributions
Full and final settlement

28

28.1
5.2
6.1

28.2
28.3

28.2

The directors or their spouses have no interest in the donation made during the year.

28.3

Auditors' remuneration
Annual audit fee
Half yearly review fee
Compliance with corporate governance review fee
Out of pocket
Sales Tax

144,623,227
1,650,538
2,190,416
3,498,108

124,376,219

151,962,289

42,077,146
5,043,110
2,004,460
11,112
428,446
1,366,379
228,850
222,396
2,261,983
1,234,212
7,574,071
547,815
799,233
380,000
440,000
684,105
229,441

40,897,473
4,398,983
708,539
11,111
344,321
1,322,393
310,484
280,439
2,634,979
1,133,953
5,269,908
587,838
1,169,811
360,000
500,000
613,350
209,450

65,532,759

60,753,032

39,880,075
1,975,206
221,865

35,867,210
2,456,730
1,743,580
829,953

42,077,146

40,897,473

550,000
31,931
27,500
24,000
50,674

500,000
29,028
25,000
15,000
44,322

684,105

613,350

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES
Provision for:
- Workers' Profit Participation Fund
- Workers' Welfare Fund
- Workers' Welfare Fund - prior
- Slow moving stores and spares
- Provision against doubtful advances
Loss on foreign exchange
Loss on disposal of fixed assets
Other

74

116,209,459
2,003,749
6,163,011

Detail of salaries, wages and other benefits
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Gratuity
Provident fund contributions
Full and final settlement

29

2018
(Rupees)

ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and other benefits
Repairs and maintenance
Depreciation
Amortization of intangible assets
Traveling and conveyance
Postage, telegram and telephone
Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance
Electricity and water charges
Printing and stationery
Legal and professional
Security charges
Fees and subscription
Director meeting fees
Charity and donations
Auditors' remuneration
Others

28.1

2019
(Rupees)
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5.4

4,596,699
1,712,586
(54,968)
3,076,036
492,375
11,258,056
4,920,671
-

5,240,671
1,447,505
1,079,504
347,419
8,821,875
366,012

26,001,455

17,302,986

30

OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Note

Scrap sales
31

2018
(Rupees)

2,048,824

1,913,664

30,090,483
10,535,949
67,540
693,498
41,387,470

11,941,939
6,018,121
15,000
459,714
18,434,774

155,898
46,444
4,870

235,768
31,169
12,667

41,594,682

18,714,378

36,851,367
6,231,953
43,083,320

30,822,162
(5,951,633)
24,870,529

FINANCE COSTS
Shariah Arrangement
Profit on short term loans
Rent on diminishing musharakah
Guarantee commission
Bank charges
Non - Shariah Arrangement
Interest on WPPF
Guarantee commission
Bank charges

32

2019
(Rupees)

TAXATION
Current
- for the year
- changes in estimates related to prior year
Deferred
32.2

18,205,714

5,351,273

61,289,034

30,221,802

32.1

The Board of Directors of the Company has distributed sufficient cash dividend for the year ending 30 June 2019 (refer note 46) to comply with the
requirements of Section 5A of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Accordingly, no provision for tax on undistributed profits has been recognized in
these financial statements.

32.2

Relationship between taxation expense and accounting profit

33

Profit before taxation

85,618,758

98,125,235

Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (2018: 30%)

24,829,440

29,437,571

Tax effect of inadmissible expenses / losses
Impact of change in tax rate
Tax effect of income assessed under final tax regime
Tax credit allowed
Prior year tax
Others

38,988,892
(8,822,267)
6,231,953
61,016

(914,413)
8,187,196
(5,951,633)
(536,919)

61,289,034

30,221,802

24,329,724

67,903,433

EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
Profit after taxation

(Number of shares)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year

3,900,000

3,900,000

(Rupees)
Earnings per share - basic and diluted

6.24

17.41
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2019
(Rupees)

Note
34

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATIONS
Profit before taxation
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Amortization
Provision against doubtful trade receivables
Provision against slow moving stores and spares
Provision for gratuity
Provision against doubtful advances
Exchange Loss
Loss / (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Finance costs

5.2
6.1
11.3
29
37.1.2
29
29
5.4
31

Changes in:
- Stores and spares
- Stock-in-trade
- Trade debts
- Loans and advances
- Trade deposits, prepayments and other receivables
- Trade and other payables
Cash flows from operations
34.1

Opening balance as at 1 July 2018
Dividend declared
Proceeds from long term loans
Loan proceeds from a director
Proceeds from short term borrowings
Repayment of long term loans
Repayment of short term borrowings
Dividend paid

Closing balance as at 30 June 2019

98,125,235

37,321,089
33,334
1,544,424
3,076,036
492,375
11,258,056
4,920,671
41,594,682

32,442,790
33,333
284,573
1,079,504
9,482,167
347,419
8,821,875
18,714,378

(10,087,145)
(141,160,865)
19,996,814
7,323,786
28,875,666
(33,393,610)
57,414,071

421,934
18,462,858
(33,209,870)
9,022,514
(41,961,509)
(4,284,326)
117,782,875

Loan from a
Long term
Short term
Dividend
Total
Director
financing
borrowings
payable
20
17
23
------------------------------------------------------ Rupees -----------------------------------------------------77,000,000
136,795,085
(28,035,360)
108,759,725
185,759,725

-

133,046,283

21,700,000
21,700,000
21,700,000

481,413,817
(420,547,281)
60,866,536
193,912,819

Note

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

23
15

Running musharakah - secured
Cash and bank balances

36

85,618,758

Reconciliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities

Note

35

2018
(Rupees)

891,219

210,937,502

13,650,000

13,650,000

(13,533,702)
(13,533,702)

136,795,085
21,700,000
481,413,817
(28,035,360)
(420,547,281)
(13,533,702)
177,792,559

1,007,517

402,380,061

2019
(Rupees)

2018
(Rupees)

(187,004,382)
1,543,982

(88,661,869)
1,257,178

(185,460,400)

(87,404,691)

SEGMENT REPORTING
The management reassessed the segment reporting process and concluded that there was no business segment because of no operation and not
material to the business operation. Currently the Company deals in baby care and oral care products which is considered as single reportable
segment as there is no process of reviewing and monitoring of operating activities, financial results, forecast / plan for the segment and no
decision was made or allocation of resources by Chief Executive (key decision maker) for product wise. Further, there was no discrete information
available specific to the segment nor the segment information presented to the Board of Directors and key decision makers. Therefore, disclosures
of segment reporting has not been presented in these financial statements.
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37

STAFF RETIREMENT BENEFITS

37.1

Defined benefit plans

37.1.1

The actuarial valuation of gratuity schemes had been conducted in accordance with IAS 19, 'Employee benefits' as at 30 June 2017. During the year
ended 30 June 2018, the scheme was dissolved by the Board of Directors with effective date of 30 September 2017.

37.1.2

37.1.3

38

2019
(Rupees)

Note

Movement in the net defined benefit liability / (asset)
Opening balance
Net cost charged to profit or loss
Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income
Benefits paid during the year
Transferred to current liabilities

-

Closing balance

-

2018
(Rupees)
54,330,870
9,482,167
(53,143,637)
(10,669,400)
-

Following amounts have been charged in the profit or loss in respect of these benefits:
Current service cost
Interest cost

-

9,482,167
-

Charge recognized in profit or loss

-

9,482,167

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The carrying value of the financial assets and financial liabilities approximate their fair values. Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be
exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.
Fair value hierarchy
Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.
Level 1 : Fair value measurements using quoted (unadjusted) in active markets for identical asset or liability.
Level 2 : Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
Level 3 : Fair value measurements using inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).

2019
Carrying Amount
Fair value
Amortised
Amortised
Total
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Total
cost
cost
------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------------On-balance sheet
financial instruments
Financial assets not
measured at fair value
Deposits
Loan to employees
Trade receivables
Cash and Bank balances

6,355,387
193,772
22,974,273
1,543,982
31,067,414

-

6,355,387
193,772
22,974,273
1,543,982
31,067,414

-

-

-

-

Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value
Long term financing

-

185,759,725

185,759,725

-

-

-

-

Trade and other payables

-

56,852,148

56,852,148

-

-

-

-

Accrued profit

-

13,112,552

13,112,552

-

-

-

-

Short term bank finances

-

380,917,201

380,917,201

-

-

-

-

-

636,641,626

636,641,626

-

-

-

-
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2018
Carrying Amount

Fair value

Loan and
Amortised
Total
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Total
receivables
cost
------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------------On-balance sheet
financial instruments
Financial assets not
measured at fair value
Deposits
Loan to employees
Trade receivables
Cash and Bank balances

5,505,387

-

5,505,387

-

-

-

-

167,555

-

167,555

-

-

-

49,187,628

-

49,187,628

-

-

-

-

1,257,178

-

1,257,178

-

-

-

-

56,117,748

-

56,117,748

-

-

-

-

Carrying Amount

Fair value

Loan and
Amortised
Total
Level 1
Level 2
Level 3
Total
receivables
cost
------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------------Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value
Long term financing

-

77,000,000

77,000,000

-

-

-

-

Trade and other payables

-

97,605,472

97,605,472

-

-

-

-

Accrued profit

-

3,304,180

3,304,180

-

-

-

-

Short term bank finances

-

221,708,152

221,708,152

-

-

-

-

-

399,617,804

399,617,804

-

-

-

-

The Company has not disclosed the fair values for financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either short term in nature or reprice
periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation of fair value.
39

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company finances its operations through short term borrowing, long term financing and management of working capital with a view to
maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize the below risks.
- Credit risk
- Liquidity risk
- Market risk
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management framework. The Board
of Directors is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Company's risk management policies.
Risk management framework
The Board of Directors are responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The Company’s risk
management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to
monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions
and the Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined
and constructive control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.
The Board of Directors oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk management policies and procedures, and
reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Company.

39.1

Credit risk
Credit risk represents the financial loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties fail completely to perform as contracted
/ fail to discharge an obligation / commitment that it has entered into with the Company. It arises principally from trade receivables, bank
balances, security deposits, profit accrued and investment in debt securities.
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Exposure to credit risk
Credit risk of the Company arises principally from the trade debts and bank balances. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the
maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:
Note
Deposits
Loans and advances
Trade receivables
Bank balances

2019
(Rupees)

2018
(Rupees)

6,355,387
193,772
22,974,273
826,362

5,505,387
167,555
49,187,628
822,452

30,349,794

55,683,022

All the trade debtors at the reporting date represent domestic parties.
The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancements for trade debts at the reporting date by type of customer was as follows:
Distributor / Wholesaler
End-user customers / Institutions

9,886,953
13,087,320

13,233,125
36,239,076

22,974,273

49,472,201

Based on the past experience, consideration of financial position, past track records and recoveries, the management does not expect nonperformance on its credit exposure. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.
The ageing of trade debts at the balance sheet date is:
Not past due
Past due 1 - 30 days
Past due 31 - 180 days
Past due 181 - 360 days
Above 360 days
Impairment

18,637,319
2,546,378
1,882,336
4,118,671
3,704,970

29,997,797
9,631,815
8,620,918
937,098
284,573

30,889,674

49,472,201

(7,915,401)

(284,573)

22,974,273

49,187,628

Bank balances
The Company kept its funds with banks having rating from AAA to A-.
Deposits
The Company has provided security deposits as per the contractual terms with counter parties as security and does not expect material loss
against those deposits.
Concentration of credit risk
Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar business activities or have similar economic
features that would cause their abilities to meet contractual obligation to be similarly affected by the changes in economic, political or other
conditions. The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk.
39.2

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its
liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due. The
Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation,
by having credit lines available as disclosed in note 20 and 25 to these financial statements. The Company ensures that it has sufficient cash
on demand to meet expected working capital requirements. The following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest
payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements:
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The following are the contractual maturities of the financial liabilities, including estimated profit payments:

Note

2019
Carrying
On
Contractual
Less than
Two to
More than
amount
demand
cash flows
one year
five years
five years
------------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------------

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Long term financing
Trade and other payables
Accrued profit
Short term borrowings

20

185,759,725
56,852,148
13,112,552
380,917,201

55,000,000
-

130,759,725
56,852,148
13,112,552
380,917,201

91,497,270
56,852,148
13,112,552
380,917,201

94,262,455
-

-

636,641,626

55,000,000

581,641,626

542,379,171

94,262,455

-

2018
Carrying
On
Contractual
Less than
Two to
More than
amount
demand
cash flows
one year
five years
five years
------------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees) -----------------------------------------------------------Non-derivative financial liabilities
Long term financing
Trade and other payables
Accrued profit
Short term borrowings

77,000,000
97,605,472
3,304,180
221,708,152

-

77,000,000
97,605,472
3,304,180
221,708,152

22,000,000
97,605,472
3,304,180
221,708,152

55,000,000
-

-

399,617,804

-

399,617,804

344,617,804

55,000,000

-

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of profit rate effective as at 30 June
2019. The rate of profit have been disclosed in notes 20 and 23 to these financial statements.
39.3

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Company’s
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

39.3.1

Currency risk
The Company is exposed to currency risk on foreign creditors and short term borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than the
respective functional currency of the Company. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows:
Euro
2019

USD
2018

2019

JPY
2018

2019

2018

Foreign creditors
Outstanding letters of credit

-

134,164
59,171

70,875
686,411

120
674,037

112,603,530

-

Net exposure

-

193,335

757,286

674,157

112,603,530

-

The following significant exchange rate has been applied :
2019

Average rate
2018

170.20
198.99
1.62

USD to PKR
Euro to PKR
JPY to PKR

113.12
130.59
-

Reporting date rate
2019
2018
160.05
182.32
1.49

121.45
141.37
-

Sensitivity analysis
At the reporting date, if the PKR had strengthened by 10% against the USD, Euro and JPY with all other variables held constant, profit for the
year would have been higher by the amount shown below, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange gain on translation of foreign creditors.
2019
(Rupees)

Effect on profit or loss
USD
Euro
JPY
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2018
(Rupees)
1,457
1,896,676
1,898,134

The weakening of the PKR against USD, Euro and JPY would have had an equal but opposite impact on the post tax profits.
The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and assets / liabilities of the Company.
39.3.2

Interest rate risk
At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest bearing financial instruments was as follows :
2019
2018
Effective interest rate
(Percentage)

2019
2018
Carrying amount
(Rupees)

Financial liabilities
Variable rate instruments:
Long term financing - secured
Short term bank finances - secured

7.44 - 13.53
6.94 - 13.55

6.66 - 6.88
6.14 - 7.01

185,759,725
380,917,201

77,000,000
221,708,152

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore a change in
interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.
Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have decreased / (increased) profit for the year by the amounts
shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2019.
Profit or loss 100 bp
Increase
Decrease
(Rupees)
As at 30 June 2019
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities

5,666,769

(5,666,769)

As at 30 June 2018
Cash flow sensitivity - Variable rate financial liabilities

(2,987,082)

2,987,082

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year and assets / liabilities of the Company.
40

REMUNERATION TO THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

Chief Executive

Directors

Executives

Total

2019
2018
2019
2018
2019
2018
2019
2018
--------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees --------------------------------------------------------------------Managerial Remuneration
43,185,102 42,077,957
43,185,102 42,077,957
Gratuity
2,719,974
2,719,974
Provident fund
2,604,275
2,500,561
2,604,275
2,500,561
Meeting fees
380,000
360,000
380,000
360,000
Full and final settlement
19,179,952
544,343
19,179,952
544,343
Other benefits
8,824,370
8,738,826
8,824,370
8,738,826
No. of persons

1

380,000
1

360,000

4

4

73,793,699
16

56,581,661

74,173,699

56,941,661

11

21

16

40.1

The Chief Executive and Executive Director have not drawn any remuneration.

40.2

The Chief Executive is provided with free use of company maintained cars in accordance with his entitlements.

40.3

The Chief Executive, Executives and their families are also covered under group life and hospitalization insurance. A director is also covered
under group hospitalization scheme.

40.4

Chairman of the Board, Chief Executive and Executive Director have not drawn any board and its committees attendance fees from the company.
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41

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES
The related parties comprise of associated undertakings, key management personnel and post employment benefit plan. The Company in the
normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. All transactions with related parties are under agreed terms /
contractual arrangements.

41.1

Transactions during the year:
Name

Premier Agencies

Nature of
relationship

Basis of
relationship

Nature of
transaction

Associated
undertaking

Common
directorship

Sale of goods - net off discount
of Rs. 190.63 million (2018: Rs.
151.9 million)
Reimbursement of selling and
distribution expenses

2019
(Rupees)

1,611,892,242

1,532,748,256

114,525,934

113,149,440

Scitech Health (Pvt) Ltd.

Associated
undertaking

Common
directorship

Sale of goods - net off discount
of Rs. 0.68 million (2018: Rs. Nil)

Memon Medical Institute

Associated
undertaking

Common
directorship

Sale of goods

Pharmevo (Pvt) Ltd.

Associated
undertaking

Common
directorship

Employees Provident Fund

Retirement
benefit fund

Employees
benefit fund

Loan from a director

Related parties Executives

Amount received from Chief
executive

21,700,000

Key management personnel

Related parties Executives

Remuneration and benefits

36,595,071

Sale of goods
Purchase of fixed asset
Contribution made

2018
(Rupees)

(1,065,358)

2,244,366

442,990

495,827

769,200

-

1,730,684

-

6,732,832

6,488,057

31,119,659

41.2

Contributions to the employee retirement benefit funds are made in accordance with the terms of employee retirement benefit schemes.

41.3

Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
Company, including directors of the Company. There were no transactions with the key management personnel during the year other than their
terms of employment / entitlements except as disclosed in note 40.

42

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company's prime objective when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide adequate
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The
Company's overall strategy remains unchanged from year 2018.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payments to shareholders or issue new shares. The management seeks to maintain
a balance between higher returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position.
The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view to maintaining an
appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.
The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.
The Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total debt less cash and bank balances. Total capital is calculated as equity as shown in the balance sheet plus net debt.
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42.1

Note

Gearing ratio

2019
(Rupees)

2018
(Rupees)

The gearing ratio at end of the year is calculated as follows
Total debt
Less: Cash and bank balances
Net debt

42.1.1

566,676,926
1,543,982
565,132,944

298,708,152
1,257,178
297,450,974

Total equity
Total capital

42.1.2

428,921,403
994,054,347

401,213,796
698,664,770

56.9%

42.6%

Gearing ratio
42.1.1

Total debt is defined as long term and short term borrowings as described in notes 20 and 23 to these financial statements.

42.1.2

Total equity includes issued, subscribed and paid-up capital, reserves and loan from a director.

43

CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
The production capacity of the plant cannot be determined as this depends upon relative proportion of various products and products
components.

44

COMPARATIVE INFORMATION
Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified or re-presented in order to give better presentation and accordingly comparatives have
been rearranged.

45

GENERAL

45.1

Number of employees
The total number of employees of the Company as at 30 June 2019 were 99 (2018: 97) and average number of employees were 102 (2018: 112).

46

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER REPORTING DATE
The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 3 October 2019 have proposed a final cash dividend of Rs. 1.25 per share amounting to Rs.
4,875,000 (2018: Rs. 3.5 per share amounting to Rs. 13,650,000) for approval of the members at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 25
October 2019. The financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 do not include the effect of the proposed cash dividend which will be
accounted for in the financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2020.

47

DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorized for issue in the Board of Directors meeting held on 3 October 2019.

M. Haroon Qassim
Chief Executive

Vali Muhammad A. Habib
Director

M. Zaid Kaliya
Chief Financial Officer
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NOTICE OF MEETING
Notice is hereby given that the 48th Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of the Company will be held
on Friday, 25 October 2019 at 3:15 p.m. at Plot # 368/4&5, Landhi Industrial Area, Baldia Road, Karachi to
transact the following business:
Ordinary Business
1. To confirm the minutes of the last Annual General Meeting held on 23 October 2018.
2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2019 along with
Auditors’ and Directors’ reports thereon.
3. To consider & approve the final cash dividend of Rs. 1.25/- (12.50%) per share as recommended by the
Board of Directors.
4. To appoint auditors of the Company for the year ending 30 June 2020 and fix their remuneration.
By order of the Board
Abdul Samad Jangda
Company Secretary

Karachi: 03 October 2019
Notes:

1. The share transfer book of the Company will remain closed from 19-10-2019 to 25-10-2019 (both days
inclusive) for the purpose of determining the entitlement for the Dividend.
2. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint another member as his/her proxy to
attend, speak and vote on his / her behalf. Forms of Proxy must be deposited at the registered office of the
Company not less than 48 hours before the time of the meeting.
3. Shareholders (non CDC) are requested to promptly notify the Company’s Registrar of any change in their
addresses and submit if applicable to them, the Non-deduction of Zakat Form CZ-50 with the Registrar of
the Company M/s. CDC Share Registrar Services Limited, CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S., Main
Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi. All the Shareholders holding their shares in book entry form are requested to
please update their addresses and Zakat status with their respective Participants. This will assist in the
prompt receipt of Dividend.
4. Under the provisions of Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the Companies (Distribution of
Dividends) Regulations, 2017, it is mandatory for a listed company to pay cash dividend to its shareholders
only through electronic mode directly into bank account designated by the entitled shareholders.
Shareholders who have not yet submitted their International Bank Account Number (IBAN) are requested
to fill in Electronic Credit Mandate Form available on the Company’s website; www.shield.com.pk and
send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to the Registrar of the Company in case of physical shares.
In case shares are held in CDC then Electronic Credit Mandate Form must be submitted directly to
shareholder’s broker/participant/CDC account services.
5. As per provisions of Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, any dividend and / or share certificate which
are remained unclaimed or unpaid for a period of three years from the date these have become due and
payable, the Company shall be liable to deposit those unclaimed / unpaid amounts with the Federal
Government as per the directives to be issued by SECP from time to time.

84

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

6. In accordance with SRO 470(I)/2016 dated 31st May 2016, SECP has allowed the companies to circulate
the annual audited financial statements to its members through CD / DVD / USB instead of transmitting the
hard copies at their registered addresses. The Company has obtained shareholders' approval in its 46th
Annual General Meeting held on 27 October 2017. Accordingly, the Annual Report of the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2019 is being dispatched to the shareholders through DVD. Shareholders may request
the Company Secretary or share registrar of the Company for transmitting the hard copy of annual audited
accounts by filing a ‘Standard Request Form’ available on Company’s website and the same will be
provided at his / her registered address, free of cost, within one week of receipt of request.
7. As per section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 every existing Company shall be required to replace its
physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, within a period not exceeding four years from the
commencement of the Companies Act, 2017. The shareholders having physical shareholding may please be
open CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or investors account directly with CDC to place their
physical shares into script-less form.
8. Shareholders can also avail video conference facility, in this regard, please fill the following and submit to
registered address of the Company 10 days before holding of the Annual General Meeting. If the Company
receives consent from members holding in aggregate 10% or more shareholding residing at a geographical
location, to participate in the meeting through video conference at least 10 days prior to date of the meeting,
the Company will arrange video conference facility in the city subject to availability of such facility in that
city.
I/We _______________of _________being a member of Shield Corporation Limited, holding
______ordinary shares as per Registered Folio / CDC Account No. _____________hereby opt for video
conference facility at _____________.

Name and signature

Date

The Company will intimate members regarding venue of video conference facility at least 7 days before the
date of General Meeting along with complete information necessary to enable them to access such facility.
9. Pursuant to the provisions of the Finance Act 2019 effective from 1 July 2019, the rates of deduction of
income tax from dividend payments under Section 150 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 have been
revised as follows:
1) For Active Taxpayer 15%
2) For Non-active Taxpayer 30%
To enable the Company to make tax deduction on the amount of cash dividend @ 15% instead of 30%,
shareholders whose names are not entered into the Active Taxpayers List (ATL) provided on the website of
FBR, despite the fact that they are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered in ATL,
otherwise tax on their cash dividend will be deducted @ 30% instead of 15%.
10. Shareholders are advised to ensure that they have provided their CNIC / NTN to their respective Participant
/ CDC Investor Account Services (if shareholding in Book Entry Form) or Company’s Share Registrar (if
shareholding in Physical Form) for checking the tax status as per the ATL issued by FBR from time to
time.
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11. Further, according to clarification received from Federal Board of Revenue (FBR), withholding tax will be
determined separately on ‘Active Taxpayer/Non-active Taxpayer’ status of Principal shareholder as well as
Joint-holder (s) based on their shareholding proportions, in case of joint accounts.
In this regard all shareholders who hold shares jointly are requested to provide shareholding proportions of
Principal shareholder and Joint-holder(s) in respect of shares held by them to our Share Registrar, in writing
as follows:

Company
Name

Folio/CDS
Account #

Total Shares

Principal Shareholder
Shareholding
Name and
Proportion
CNIC #
(No. of
Shares)

Joint Shareholder
Shareholding
Name and
Proportion
CNIC #
(No. of
Shares)

The required information must reach our Share Registrar within 10 days of this notice, otherwise it will be
assumed that the shares are equally held by Principal shareholder and Joint Holder(s).
12. Shareholders can exercise their right to poll subject to meeting of requirement of Section 143 to 145 of the
Companies Act, 2017 and applicable clauses of Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations, 2018.
13. CDC Account Holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guideline as laid down in circular 1
dated 26 January 2000 issued by SECP.
A.

For Attending the Meeting
i.

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose securities are
in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall authenticate
his/her identity by showing his/her original computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) or original
passport at the time of attending the meeting.

ii.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen
signature of the nominee shall be produced (unless it has been provided earlier) at the time of the
meeting.

B.

For Appointing Proxies
i.

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and / or the person whose securities are
in group account and their registration details are uploaded as per the Regulations, shall submit the
proxy form as per the above requirement.

ii.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be
mentioned in the form.

iii.

Attested copies of CNIC or passport of beneficial owner and the proxy shall be furnished with the
proxy form.

iv.

The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or passport at the time of the meeting. In case of
corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with the specimen signature
shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company.

14. Pursuant to Para 3(a) of SRO 634(I)/2014 dated 10 July 2014 issued by the SECP the financial statements
and reports have been placed on website of the Company.
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The Company Secretary
Shield Corporation Limited
Office No 1007, 10th Floor, Business Avenue,
Block 6, P.E.C.H.S., Shahrah-e-Faisal,
Karachi-74500, Pakistan

Proxy Form

I/We
……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………...…
of …………………………….………………………………………………….
Corporation

Limited

and

holder

of

….…………………………………….………of

………………..

being a member of

ordinary

shares

………………………………………..

hereby
or

Shield
appoint
failing

……………………………….......... of ……………………………. who is also a member of Shield Corporation
Limited , as my / our proxy to attend vote for me / us and on my/our behalf at the 48th Annual General Meeting of
the Company to be held on Friday, October 25, 2019 and at any adjournment thereof.
As witness my/our hand(s) this ________________ day of ________________, 2019;
Signed in the presence of:

___________________

___________________

(Signature of Witness1)
Name:
CNIC No:

(Signature of Witness 2)
Name:
CNIC No:

-

_______________________________

-

(Name in Block Letters)
Shareholder’s
Folio No. / CDC Account No._______________

-

Affix
Revenue
Stamp

-

_____________________________

Signature of the

Notes:
1.

2.

3.
4.

5.

Member is requested:
a) to affix Revenue Stamp at the place indicated above
b) to sign in the same style of signature as registered with the Company.
c) to write down his/her Folio Number.
For the appointment of the above proxy to be valid, this instrument must be received at registered office of the Company at
Office No 1007, 10th Floor, Business Avenue, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S., Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi at least forty-eight hours before
the time fixed for the meeting.
Any alteration made in this instrument of proxy should be initialed by the person who signs it.
In case of Joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote whether in person or by proxy will be accepted to the
exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders, and for this purpose the seniority will be determined by the order in which the
names stand in the Register of Members.
The proxy must be member of the Company

For CDC Account Holder / Corporate Entities:
In addition to the above, the following requirements have to be met:
1. The proxy must be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC shall be mentioned on the form.
2. Attested copies of CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.
3. The proxy shall produce his/her original CNIC or Passport at the time of meeting.
4. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution/power of attorney with the specimen signature shall be submitted
(unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the company.
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